
TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT 
COUNCIL AGENDA 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 10, 2014 
 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

7:00 P.M. 
 

 
 
1. MOTION TO CONVENE INTO CLOSED SESSION (IF NECESSARY) 

 
 

2. MOTION TO RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 
 
 
3. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
 
4. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
5. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST UNDER THE MUNICIPAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

ACT 
 
 
6. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
 6.1  Council Meeting Minutes January 13, 2014 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the minutes of the following meetings be adopted as presented: 
 

Regular Council Meeting January 13, 2014. 
 
 
7. PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 

7.1  REPORT NO. DS 2014-04 
  Official Plan Amendment Application 01/13 

Zone Change Application 08/13 
Labreche Patterson & Associates Inc. / Westcap Development Inc. 
296, 302 and 308 Snyder’s Road East / Brubacher Street, Baden 

 
Recommendation 
 
That Report DS 2014-04 be received for information. 
 
 
8. PRESENTATIONS/DELEGATIONS 
 
 
 
 
  



Council Agenda Monday, February 10, 2014 2 

9. REPORTS 
 

9.1  CAO  
 
   9.1.1 REPORT NO. CAO 2014-01 
     Regional Economic Development Strategy Update 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT report CAO-14-01 be received; and, 
 
THAT the Province of Ontario be requested to amend the Table in Section 11 of the Municipal Act, 
2001, S.O. 2001, Chapter 25, to add the Regional Municipality of Waterloo to the list of Upper-tier 
Municipalities that are assigned “non-exclusive” legislative authority to participate in the 
assigned sphere of “Acquisition, development, and disposal of sites for industrial, commercial 
and institutional uses.” 
 
 

9.2  CLERKS  
 
   9.2.1 REPORT NO. CL 2014-01 
     Renewal of Lease Agreement with Wilmot Heritage Fire Brigades 
     10 Bell Drive, Baden 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT Report No. CL2014-01, dated February 10, 2014 regarding the renewal of the lease 
agreement with Wilmot Heritage Fire Brigades at 10 Bell Drive, Baden be endorsed, and further; 
 
THAT the Mayor and Clerk be authorized to sign the associated by-law and agreement. 
 
 

9.2.2 REPORT NO. CL 2014-03 
  Petition from Region of Waterloo / Activa Group  

for Municipal Drainage Works 
For Lands East Side of Trussler Road, Mannheim  
(Between Ottawa Street / Bleams Road and Highway 7 & 8) 
Township of Wilmot, Regional Municipality of Waterloo 

 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the Township of Wilmot accept the Petition for Municipal Drainage Works received from The 
Regional Municipality of Waterloo and the Activa Group for 468 Trussler Road, Mannheim (Part 
Lot 46, German Company Tract), City of Kitchener (westerly part of parcel on the east side of the 
road approximately halfway between Ottawa Street / Bleams Road and Highway 7 & 8),  and 
authorize the Clerk  to proceed accordingly under The Drainage Act. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Monday, February 10, 2014 3 

9.2.3 REPORT NO. CL 2014-04 
     By-law Enforcement  
     Quarterly Activity Report 

October 1st, to December 31st, 2013 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the Enforcement Activity Report for October 1st, to December 31st, 2013 be received for 
information purposes. 
 
 
   9.2.4 REPORT NO. CL 2014-05 

Proposed Amending By-law to Rename a Portion of Deerfield Avenue to 
Deerfield Extension, Petersburg 

 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the Mayor and Clerk be authorized to sign the associated amendment to By-law 1980-06, 
(Being a By-law to Confirm the Opening of Deerfield Avenue) to rename the portion of Deerfield 
Avenue east of Alice Crescent, to Deerfield Extension. 
 
 

9.3  FINANCE  
 
   9.3.1 REPORT NO. FIN 2014-10 
     2014 Municipal Budget 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the 2014 Municipal Budget dated February 3, 2014, as recommended by the Ad Hoc Budget 
Advisory Committee, be approved; and 
 
THAT the Director of Finance be authorized to prepare the necessary levying by-law to raise 
$6,770,040 for Township purposes from general taxation. 
 
 

9.4  PUBLIC WORKS 
 
   9.4.1 REPORT NO. PW-2014-01 
     Public Works Activity Report 
     October - December 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the Public Works Department Activity Reports for the months of October, November and 
December 2013 be received for information. 
 
 

9.5  DEVELOPMENT SERVICES  
 

   9.5.1 REPORT NO. DS 2014-05 
     Wilmot Trails Master Plan Implementation Consultant Selection 
 
Recommendation 
 
That Report DS 2014-05 be received for information. 



Council Agenda Monday, February 10, 2014 4 

9.6  FACILITIES AND RECREATION SERVICES  
 
   9.6.1 REPORT NO. PRD 2014-01 
     Facilities & Recreation Services Activity Reports – Oct. to Dec. 2013 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the Facilities & Recreation Services Activity Reports for the fourth quarter of 2013 be 
received for information. 
 
 
   9.6.2 REPORT NO. PRD-2014-02  
     Request to Waive the Rental Fee 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the fees associated with the use of the New Hamburg Community Centre on February 23, 
2014, to hold a fundraising event for the Reiner Family, be waived. 
 
 

9.7  FIRE – no reports 
 
 

9.8  CASTLE KILBRIDE  
 
  9.8.1 REPORT NO. CK 2014-01 

     Quarterly Activity Report – October, November & December 2013 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the Castle Kilbride Activity Report for the months of October, November & December 2013 
be accepted for information purposes. 
 
 
10. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

10.1 Region of Waterloo Planning, Housing and Community Services, Transportation 
Services – Regional Transportation Master Plan Progress Report  

10.2 Grand River Conservation Authority – General Membership Meeting, December 13, 
2013 

10.3 Regional Municipality of Waterloo – Master Plan for Waterloo Regional Police Service 
10.4 Association of Municipalities of Ontario – The Fork in the Road – Highlights of AMO’s 

2014 Pre-Budget Submission 
10.5 Heritage Wilmot Advisory Committee – January 14, 2014 Meeting Minutes 
 

Recommendation 
 
That Correspondence Items 10.1 to 10.5 be received for information. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Monday, February 10, 2014 5 

10.6 Randy Pettapiece, MPP Perth-Wellington – Request to Support Private Member’s 
Resolution in the Ontario Legislature Re Joint and Several Liability 

 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the Township of Wilmot supports the intent of a resolution addressing Joint and Several 
Liability for municipalities, prepared by private member Randy Pettapiece, MPP Perth – Wellington 
and introduced to the Ontario legislature as follows: 
 
That, in the opinion of the House, the government should protect taxpayers from higher property 
taxes by implementing a comprehensive, long-term solution to reform joint and several liability 
insurance for municipalities by no later than June 2014, addressing the alarming rise in insurance 
premiums due to rising litigation and claim costs.  
 
 
11. BY-LAWS  
 

11.1 By-law No. 2014-05 Being a By-law to Amend 1980-06, To Change the Name of a 
Portion of Highway Within the Township of Wilmot (Deerfield Extension) 

11.2 By-law No. 2014-06 By-law to Authorize the Execution of an Agreement with the Wilmot 
Heritage Fire Brigades 

11.3 By-law No. 2014-07 Water and Wastewater Rates By-law 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT By-law Nos. 2014-05, 2014-06 and 2014-07 be read a first, second and third time and finally 
passed in Open Council. 
 
 
12. NOTICE OF MOTIONS 
 
 
13. QUESTIONS/NEW BUSINESS/ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 
14. BUSINESS ARISING FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
15. CONFIRMATORY BY-LAW 
 

15.1 By-law No. 2014-08 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT By-law No. 2014-08 to Confirm the Proceedings of Council at its Meeting held on February 
10, 2014 be introduced, read a first, second, and third time and finally passed in Open Council. 
 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT we do now adjourn to meet again at the call of the Mayor. 



TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT 
COUNCIL MINUTES 

MONDAY, JANUARY 13, 2014 
 

AD HOC BUDGET ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 
WILMOT COMMUNITY ROOM 

5:30 P.M. 
 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

7:00 P.M. 
 
 
Members Present: Mayor L. Armstrong, Councillors A. Junker, P. Roe, B. Fisher, J. Gerber,  

M. Murray 
 
Staff Present: Chief Administrative Officer G. Whittington, Director of Clerk’s Services  

B. McLeod, Deputy Clerk D. Mittelholtz, Director of Public Works G. Charbonneau, 
Director of Facilities and Recreation Services S. Nancekivell, Director of 
Development Services H. O’Krafka, Fire Chief M. Raine, Curator/Director of Castle 
Kilbride T. Loch, Planner/EDO A. Martin 

 
 
1. MOTION TO CONVENE INTO CLOSED SESSION (IF NECESSARY) 

 
 

2. MOTION TO RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 
 
 
3. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong asked that during the moment of silence those in attendance think of the Reiner 
family during this difficult time and the family on Waterloo Street who lost their home in a fire this 
weekend.  
 
 
4. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
5. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST UNDER THE MUNICIPAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

ACT 
 
None disclosed. 
 
 
6. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
 6.1  Council Meeting Minutes December 9, 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Minutes Monday, January 13, 2014 2 

Resolution No. 2014-01 
 
Moved by:  P. Roe         Seconded by: A. Junker 
 
THAT the minutes of the following meetings be adopted as presented: 
 

Regular Council Meeting December 9, 2013. 
 

CARRIED, AS AMENDED. 
 
Council concurred with Councillor A. Junker’s request concerning the addition of his comments 
concerning speed acceleration on Highway 7&8 approaching the Peel Street / Haysville Road 
intersection, which was later confirmed by MTO, be added to the minutes. 
 
 
7. PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 
 
8. PRESENTATIONS/DELEGATIONS 
 

8.1  Gary Goeree, President, The Community Players 
 
Mr. Goeree introduced himself and gave a brief history of the organization which is approaching its thirty 
year anniversary.  He summarized their past activities and gave an inside view of what all is involved 
when preparing for a show.  He verbalized the groups appreciation for the loyal and enthusiastic audience 
within and beyond Wilmot Township and spoke of how The Community Players gives back to the 
community by supporting various charities and community endeavors.  He acknowledged the partnership  
and working relationship that the organization has had with the Township and provided thanks to Council 
for what they have been given which allows the productions to occur.  He concluded with his appreciation 
of staff and for them making things happen in bringing the magic of theatre to the community. 
 
Councillor A. Junker provided Council with an anecdotal account of the first production by The 
Community Players, then known as the Trinity Community Players, where he was an advisor to the youth 
and part of the back stage crew.  He commented on how much the productions have changed over the 
years and that it was great to have been a part of the early years. 
 
Councillor J. Gerber thanked Mr. Goeree for attending the meeting and for his kind words.  He remarked 
that the productions are always very well done and he has enjoyed the introduction of the studio theatre. 
 
Mr. Goeree added that The Community Players is glad to have the New Hamburg Arena remain a facility 
and that the organization will be working to improve the theatre experience further. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong remarked that he is consistently amazed by the productions and the transformation 
of the facility to the extent that the arena is made to feel like a real theatre.  He then presented Mr. 
Goeree with a certificate of congratulations and appreciation for The Community Players for their thirty 
year anniversary and for their contributions to the community.  
 
 

8.2  Hugh Handy, Associate, GSP Group Inc. 
Zone Change Application for 190 and 198 Brewery Street, Baden 

 
8.2.1 REPORT NO. DS 2014-01 

Zone Change Application 03/13 
Will-O Homes / GSP Group Inc. 
Part of Lot 15, Concession South of Snyder’s Road 
190 and 198 Brewery Street, Baden 



Council Minutes Monday, January 13, 2014 3 

Resolution No. 2014-02 
 
Moved by:  J. Gerber         Seconded by: M. Murray 
 
THAT Zone Change Application 03/13 made by Will-O Homes and GSP Group Inc. affecting Part of 
Lot 15, Concession South of Snyder’s Road be approved to place the subject lands within Zone 11 
(Open Space) and Zone 4a (Residential Row), subject to the following: 
 
1.  The maximum number of dwelling units shall be 31, 
 
2.  A minimum of 3 off-street parking spaces shall be provided per dwelling unit, 
 
3. That units with their rear wall parallel to the south property line and facing Hastings Court 

(Units 27-31 on the concept plan dated September 23, 2013) shall be a maximum of one storey, 
and; 

 
4. The property line setbacks shall be as illustrated on the concept plan dated September 23, 2013. 
 

CARRIED, AS AMENDED. 
 
The Planner/EDO highlighted the report and advised Council that since the writing of the report, the 
Ministry of the Environment acknowledged the Record of Site Condition and a clearance letter was 
received from the Region of Waterloo indicating that a Holding Zone provision was no longer necessary. 
 
Councillor B. Fisher stated some concerns he had regarding the development such as not having 
sufficient time to review all of the information in the report, the potential disruption to a large number of 
neighbours where other similar developments in Baden have had very few neighbours, that many 
neighbours are expressing concern over the development and that the peer review phrasing of “generally 
satisfactory” did not increase his confidence regarding the hydrogeological assessment for the 
development.  He recommended that the report be deferred to a later date. 
 
The Planner/EDO indicated that all materials were posted on the website prior to December 20, that a 
memo was provided to Council on the same day, that the current planning report has been posted on the 
website since January 7th, and that the materials in the report had been previously made available to 
Council.  He advised Council that professional engineers generally cannot give a one-hundred percent 
guarantee in regards to such studies but two separate engineering firms concluded that they do not 
anticipate any issues with respect to ground water.  He noted that the concerns of the neighbours were 
discussed in the report highlighting that history would suggest that property values surrounding new 
developments do not decrease, that landscaping would address the perceived privacy issues, and that 
the report details how the development conforms to the Township and Regional Official Plans. He 
provided further examples of developments that were surrounded by single family dwellings. 
 
Councillor P. Roe provided his support of the comments made by Councillor B. Fisher by stating that 
Council received a lot of information to review in a very short time, even though it had been presented 
previously, more time would be required to ensure full understanding of the matter as it stands currently.  
He also recognized that time constraints may be a factor if approval was delayed.  The Planner/EDO 
reiterated the timing of the posting of the information and that the only new information in the package 
was the staff report summarizing what Council had already received. 
 
Councillor B. Fisher requested that a motion be made to defer the report to the next Council Meeting and 
the following motion was made: 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Minutes Monday, January 13, 2014 4 

Resolution No. 2014-01 
 
Moved by: B. Fisher         Seconded by: P. Roe 
 
THAT Report DS 2014-01 be deferred to the Council Meeting scheduled on February 10, 2014. 
 

DEFEATED. 
 
Mr. Handy introduced himself to Council and expressed his view that the developers have attempted to 
be proactive and responsive to the concerns of Council and residents.  He agreed that Council has 
received a lot of information but that it has been available for a long period of time.  He advised that his 
colleagues were available to discuss some of the technical aspects of the development and the studies 
that have been conducted.  He also stated that the developer has been as cooperative as possible and 
will continue to be throughout the design stage.  It is the desire of the developer to successfully integrate 
into the surrounding area.  He concluded by stating that this is not an uncommon type of development for 
this sort of area. 
 
At the request of Mayor L. Armstrong the Planner/EDO outlined the three options available to Council.  
The first option is to approve the application and notification would be sent to the surrounding neighbours 
of the approval and that they have twenty days to appeal.  The second option would be to deny the 
approval and the applicant would receive notification and have the same twenty days to appeal.  The last 
option would be to defer the decision at which time the applicant would have the ability to appeal to the 
Ontario Municipal Board for failure to make a decision within one hundred and twenty days of application.  
He concluded by stating that with either option, if no one appeals, the process would simply continue as 
per Council’s Resolution. 
 
Councillor J. Gerber asked Councillors B. Fisher and P. Roe what information would be needed for them 
to make a decision. 
 
The Director of Development Services provided clarification that the purpose of the peer review was to 
provide Council with a level of comfort regarding the engineer’s report in relation to water in the area.  
The Planner/EDO added that the selection of the peer review firm was from suggestions from the Region 
as to who they have used previously and then contacting the firms to ensure the best firm was selected 
for this review.  
 
In response to Councillor J. Gerber’s inquiry, Councillor B. Fisher stated that his concerns revolve around 
potential water issues and the use of the phrase “generally satisfactory” in the peer review.  He further 
reiterated his concern that he was unaware of the postings on the website for the report.  The 
Planner/EDO commented on the peer review’s purpose of addressing the water concerns and the 
outcome of the review was the same as with the first engineer.  As to the notification about the posting on 
the website, the Planner/EDO stated that a memo including the direct url to the material was circulated to 
Council in their mailboxes as has been the practice with all previous reports. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong reiterated regarding the engineer’s report concerning water that it had been reviewed 
as requested by Council by an impartial third party with the intention of providing a level of comfort for 
Council making the decision concerning the application. 
 
Councillor P. Roe responded to the inquiry of Councillor J. Gerber by stating that what he would require to 
make a decision concerning this matter would be the opportunity to review the material more fully which 
he has not had the opportunity to do.  The Planner/EDO reminded Council that despite the size of the 
report it is only the actual staff report which is new. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong advised Council that the material has been available but if Council had not reviewed 
it is not the fault of staff. 
 
 



Council Minutes Monday, January 13, 2014 5 

Sharon Horst, 193 Brewery Street 
 
Ms. Horst advised Council that she did receive notice of the report on December 16.  However, she 
disagreed with the timing and delivery method since it was during the Christmas holidays and if a person 
did not have the internet or a printer that they would not be able to access it.  She advised that although it 
was stated that hard copies would be available at the Township Office, residents would be unlikely to 
obtain such a copy and that it should have been delivered.  She discussed the impact of the drawings in 
the report and that they provide a powerful impact in advising residents of what they will be seeing at the 
development.  She quoted a portion of the letter from the GSP Group Inc. regarding compatibility and 
expressed her opinion that she does not agree with it.  She concluded her comments by stating that her 
concerns relative to the development’s access being across from her driveway was not addressed by the 
applicant. 
 
Jim Groothuis, 48 Hastings Court 
 
Mr. Groothius asked Council if the development is a fit with the neighbourhood and if the development 
needs so many units.  He disagreed with the classification of the single story units due to the walkout 
basements giving the appearance of two stories.  He concluded his discussion by asking where a 
resident would go for restitution if a problem with water arises. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong advised Council and the residents in attendance that the Grand River Conservation 
Authority has evaluated the development as well and that they also do not anticipate any issues. 
 
In response to Councillor J. Gerber who reiterated Mr. Groothuis’s questions regarding restitution in the 
event of a future problem, the Planner/EDO advised that the development agreement would make the 
developer responsible and following that, the condominium corporation would take on such responsibility 
in their agreement.  The Director of Development Services added that part of the peer review included the 
clause that the “Township may rely on the engineer’s opinion if needed” which provides some legal 
recourse. 
 
Ken Jackson, 190 Tannery Street 
 
Mr. Jackson provided his opinion that the Planner would be incorrect regarding property values increasing 
as he feels backing on to a green space would be more appealing than backing on to a new 
development.  He inquired as to whether the study took into account the extraordinary amount of water in 
the area as illustrated in the map he provided to Council at a previous meeting and if the standard study 
would provide the answers for the questions being asked. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong took a moment to remind Council of what was previously on the property.  Mr. 
Jackson then replied that the structure amounted to a smaller percentage of the green space. 
 
 
9. REPORTS 
 

9.1  CAO – no reports 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Minutes Monday, January 13, 2014 6 

9.2  CLERKS  
 

9.2.1 REPORT NO. CL2014-02 
     Township of Wilmot 

Integrity Commissioner 
2013 Report 

 
Resolution No. 2014-04 
 
Moved by:  P. Roe         Seconded by: A. Junker 
 
THAT the Township of Wilmot Integrity Commissioner’s Report for 2013 be received for 
information purposes. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 

9.3  FINANCE  
 

9.3.1 REPORT NO. FIN 2014-04 
     Development Charges Study Consultant Selection 
 
Resolution No. 2014-05 
 
Moved by:  M. Murray         Seconded by: B. Fisher 
 
THAT the consulting services for the completion of a Development Charges Background Study be 
awarded to Watson & Associates Economists Ltd. For an upset limit of $28,500.00 (net of HST 
rebate). 
 

CARRIED. 
 
The Director of Finance highlighted the report. 
 
 

9.4  PUBLIC WORKS – no reports 
 
 

9.5  DEVELOPMENT SERVICES  
 

9.5.1 REPORT NO. DS 2014-02 
     December 2013 Building Statistics 
 
Resolution No. 2014-06 
 
Moved by:  M. Murray         Seconded by: P. Roe 
 
THAT the December 2013 Building Statistics be received for information. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
The Director of Development Services highlighted the report. 
 
 
 
 



Council Minutes Monday, January 13, 2014 7 

9.5.2 REPORT NO. DS 2014-03 
Street Name Confirmation 
Deerfield Extension, Petersburg 

 
Resolution No. 2014-07 
 
Moved by:  P. Roe         Seconded by: A. Junker 
 
THAT the Clerk be directed to complete the necessary notices and by-law amendments to rename 
a portion of Deerfield Avenue in Petersburg as Deerfield Extension to reflect the use of this street 
name since approximately 1987. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
The Planner/EDO highlighted the report. 
 
 

9.6  FACILITIES AND RECREATION SERVICES – no reports 
 

9.7  FIRE 
 

9.7.1 REPORT NO. FI 2014-01 
Quarterly Activity Report 
 

Resolution No. 2014-08 
 
Moved by:  P. Roe         Seconded by: B. Fisher 
 
THAT the Fire Department Activity Report for the fourth quarter of 2013 be received for 
information purposes. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
The Fire Chief responded to the inquiry from Councillor P. Roe regarding the Tanker Shuttle Accreditation 
by advising Council that the company providing the necessary training was unavailable to complete it in 
2013.  The training is now scheduled to occur in May 2014. 
 
 

9.8  CASTLE KILBRIDE – no reports 
 
 
10. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

10.1 Grand River Conservation Authority – GRCA Current, December 2013 
10.2 Grand River Conservation Authority – GRCA Current, January 2014 
10.3 Grand River Conservation Authority – GRCA Planning, Permit and Inquiry Revised 

Fees Effective February 1, 2014 
10.4 Grand River Conservation Authority – Grand Actions, November/December 2013 

 
Resolution No. 2014-09 
 
Moved by:  A. Junker         Seconded by: B. Fisher 
 
THAT Correspondence items 10.1 and 10.4 be received for information. 
 

CARRIED. 



Council Minutes Monday, January 13, 2014 8 

 
 
11. BY-LAWS  
 

11.1 2014-01 Interim Levy By-law. January 13, 2014 
11.2 2014-02 Fees and Charges By-law, January 13, 2014 

 
Resolution No. 2014-10 
 
Moved by:  M. Murray         Seconded by: A. Junker 
 
THAT By-law Nos. 2014-01, and 2014-02 be read a first, second and third time and finally passed in 
Open Council. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
 

11.3 2014-03 Zone Change Application 03/13 Will-O Homes / GSP Group Inc., Part of Lot 
15, Concession South of Snyder’s Road 190 and 198 Brewery Street, Baden 

 
Resolution No. 2014-11 
 
Moved by:  P. Roe         Seconded by: J. Gerber 
 
THAT By-law No. 2014-03 be read a first, second and third time and finally passed in Open 
Council, as amended. 
 

CARRIED, AS AMENDED. 
 
 
12. NOTICE OF MOTIONS 
 
 
13. QUESTIONS/NEW BUSINESS/ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
13.1 December 22, 2013 Ice Storm 
 
Councillor P. Roe began the discussion of the Kitchener-Wilmot Hydro and Township response to the ice 
storm and subsequent power outages that occurred on December 22, 2014.  He suggested that 
Kitchener-Wilmot Hydro review their criteria and process for clearing or pruning trees near hydro lines. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong confirmed that he would bring that suggestion to the other members of the Board for 
Kitchener-Wilmot Hydro but stated that they should also be commended for the excellent work performed 
in restoring power. 
 
Councillor P. Roe concurred that they should be commended for the clean-up and staff dedication but 
that a better solution would be if the clean-up was not necessary due to outages caused by broken/fallen 
branches. 
 
Councillor A. Junker expressed his preference to be included in the communications directly from 
Kitchener-Wilmot Hydro.  He also stated that he felt a warming centre was warranted and that the criteria 
for establishing one should be reviewed.  He concurred that the efforts to restore power on the part of 
Kitchener-Wilmot Hydro was excellent.  Further to communications, he suggested that Kitchener-Wilmot 
Hydro update the website more frequently, especially if residents are directed there for more information, 



Council Minutes Monday, January 13, 2014 9 

and that greater efforts be given to ensure the accuracy of the announcements on the 570 News radio 
station. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong clarified for Council that Kitchener-Wilmot Hydro had some issues in determining 
where outages originated in some instances.  He stated that he has discussed with staff the need for 
power generators and establishing warming centres.  For the ice storm, discussions did occur regarding 
one site but it was not ideal for this purpose for various reasons.  He expressed his opinion that the 
Wilmot Recreation Complex would be the ideal location for a warming centre and that outfitting it for that 
purpose should be addressed.  
 
Councillor M. Murray stated that generators are required but come at a high cost.  He suggested that this 
be addressed so that one or two facilities are equipped and/or upgraded each year until all necessary 
facilities are completed.  He expressed his opinion that the Township was ill prepared which is not ideal 
given that residents look to their municipality for guidance and support during such events. 
Mayor L. Armstrong concurred with Councillor M. Murray and suggested that the Wilmot Recreation 
Complex be equipped/upgraded first.  The Director of Facilities and Recreation Services then provided 
Council with the details of what sort of generators currently exist at the Wilmot Recreation Complex, what 
they supply emergency power to and the duration. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong noted that generators can be sizeable investment and that some facilities require 
retrofitting to allow for portable generators. 
 
The Fire Chief clarified the comments from Councillor M. Murray concerning the generators at the Fire 
Stations by stating that New Dundee can generate power for full operation of the facility but that the other 
stations can only operate certain essential equipment. 
 
The CAO advised that staff have been reviewing the matter and that some items have been included in 
the proposed Ten Year Capital Plan.  He clarified that one of the first needs is to ensure a facility has the 
ability to receive a portable generator.  He confirmed that the CAOs in the Region are meeting to review 
the ice storm response and that the Region declares the warming centres. 
 
In response to Councillor M. Murray, the CAO advised that the full Emergency Control Group was not 
called but that available staff did meet with the Mayor.  He further advised that Kitchener-Wilmot Hydro 
will be requested to communicate directly with all of Council for such events. 
 
Councillor M. Murray requested that Kitchener-Wilmot Hydro include descriptions of what their various 
acronyms and codes mean in their communications. 
 
Councillor P. Roe reiterated his earlier opinion that proactive tree pruning during good weather is a more 
cost effective solution then reacting to the outages during such weather events.  He suggested that 
Kitchener-Wilmot Hydro needs to determine what the most effective clearance is around hydro lines. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong added that branches are not the only area of concern as the accumulation of ice on 
the hydro lines can also cause outages. 
 
 
14. BUSINESS ARISING FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Minutes Monday, January 13, 2014 10 

15. CONFIRMATORY BY-LAW 
 

15.1 By-law No. 2014-04 
 
Resolution No. 2014-12 
 
Moved by:  B. Fisher         Seconded by: A. Junker 
 
THAT By-law No. 2014-04 to Confirm the Proceedings of Council at its Meeting held on January 
13, 2014 be introduced, read a first, second, and third time and finally passed in Open Council. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT (8:31 P.M.) 
 
Resolution No. 2014-13 
 
Moved by:  P. Roe         Seconded by: J. Gerber 
 
THAT we do now adjourn to meet again at the call of the Mayor. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
               Mayor  
 
 
 
_______________________________  
               Clerk 



 
 
 

Township of Wilmot 
REPORT 

 
 

 
REPORT NO.  DS 2014-04  
 
TO:   Council  
  
PREPARED BY:    Andrew Martin, Planner/EDO 
 
DATE:    February 10, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  Official Plan Amendment Application 01/13 

Zone Change Application 08/13 
Labreche Patterson & Associates Inc. / Westcap Development Inc. 
296, 302 and 308 Snyder’s Road East / Brubacher Street, Baden 

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That Report DS 2014-04 be received for information. 
 
Background: 
 
A public meeting was held with respect to this application on June 3, 2013. Notice of the second 
public meeting was given to property owners within 120 metres of the subject lands on January 
10, 2014. 
 
Public: (Summarized below and attached in full) 
 
New Comments Received: 
 
Student Transportation Services of Waterloo Region – concerned about the impact of 
construction on sidewalks and the use of a school bus stop adjacent to the development. 
 
Richard and Karen Owen, 312 Snyder’s Rd E. – questioning why the applicant is being allowed 
to raise the elevation of the property; identifying information included in the noise study with 
respect to the auto body operations; concerned with potential noise complaints as a result of 
two-storey homes; concerned with privacy, security, decreased property values, and increased 
traffic; inquiring how the retaining wall will be constructed without disrupting their business; 
questioning the future plans for the surplus undeveloped property. 
 
Marilyn and Dave Fewster, 288 Snyder’s Rd E. – requesting additional time to review submitted 
materials; concerns with impact on property values, privacy and security; inquiring how the 
retaining wall is planned to be constructed given its proximity to the property line; requesting 
details on retaining wall construction and privacy fencing; questioning form of ownership of the 
units; concerned with traffic and noise; raising inconsistencies with drawings. 
 

dawnm
Typewritten Text
7.1



Page 2 of 3 
 

Prior Comments: 
 
Richard and Karen Owen, 312 Snyder’s Rd E. – requesting additional information on the 
retaining wall including its proximity to the property line and how the materials proposed to be 
used to construct the wall and fence; concerned about drainage issues as a result of the raised 
elevation of the property; concerned about snow accumulation between the proposed wall and 
the shop on their property as well as the noise and emissions being trapped on their property as 
a result of the proximity of the wall to their shop; requesting noise warning clauses relative to 
their operation, requirements for ongoing maintenance of the wall, and buffering between the 
proposed parking lot and their property. 
 
Marilyn and Dave Fewster, 288 Snyder’s Rd E. – concerns regarding trespassing onto their 
property, privacy, safety, and potential grading and runoff issues. 
 
Jason Scozzafava, 9 Erbach Cres. – questioning the appropriateness of changing the 
designation to residential suggesting light industrial uses would be more appropriate; inquiring 
about the plans for lands proposed to be conveyed to the Township and the costs associated 
with its ownership; suggesting that there may be better ways to develop the property 
 
Agencies: 
 
GRCA: application still being reviewed 
Region of Waterloo: outstanding at time of writing report 
WRDSB: no concerns 
CN: requesting the registration of an “environmental easement” with respect to existing and 
future potential for rail noise. 
 
Discussion: 
 
These applications were previously considered at a Public Meeting on June 3, 2013. 
 
The subject lands are currently designated in part Light Industrial and in part Urban Residential, 
Baden Urban Area by the Township Official Plan and are zoned in part Zone 8 (Commercial), in 
part Zone 2b (Residential), and in part Zone 1 (Agricultural). 
 
The subject property consists of what was previously four separate properties, but has since 
been consolidated into one parcel. 
 
The proposed Official Plan Amendment relates to lands fronting Snyder’s Road East formerly 
used for the Herner Wood Products business.  The designation of the lands is proposed to be 
changed from Light Industrial to Urban Residential. The proposed Zone Change Application 
applies to two areas identified on the attached location plan.   
 
The development concept for the lands fronting Brubacher Street is unchanged from the 
concept presented on June 3, 2013. The lands are proposed to be rezoned to Zone 4a 
(Residential) with site specific regulations to permit a 12 unit street fronting townhouse 
development as illustrated on the attached “Tributes of Baden” site plan. Development of this 
portion of the subject property would involve extension of municipal water and sanitary sewer 
services to the property as well as pedestrian connection from the proposed units along 
Brubacher Street to Snyder’s Road East. 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 

The development concept for the lands fronting Snyder’s Road East has changed slightly. The 
lands are still proposed to be rezoned to Zone 4a (Residential) with site specific regulations, 
however the concept has been modified to permit 34 two storey townhome units as illustrated 
on the attached “Herner Woods” site plan.  The elevation of the property would be increased to 
accommodate site servicing resulting in a retaining wall around the side and rear of the property 
having a maximum height of approximately 2.0m along the east property line and 1.9m along 
the west property line. 
 
Since the last public meeting, the Ministry of the Environment confirmed a new noise guideline. 
The original concept proposed an acoustical barrier along the east side of the property. Based 
on MOE’s new noise guideline, a noise wall is no longer required. At the time of writing this 
report, the revised noise study was still being reviewed by the Region of Waterloo. 
 
The supporting materials including proposed site plans, engineering plans, a functional servicing 
and storm water management report, a noise feasibility study, and an environmental impact 
study are still being reviewed by the Grand River Conservation Authority and Region of 
Waterloo.   
 
Strategic Plan Conformity: 
 
Public meetings provide an opportunity for residents to be involved in planning decisions which 
supports the Township’s goal of being an engaged community through communicating 
municipal matters. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
Any financial implications will be discussed as part of a subsequent report. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
At such time as outstanding agency comments are received and additional comments from the 
Public Meeting are considered, staff will prepare a subsequent report for Council’s 
consideration. Individuals having made written or verbal presentations at or prior to a public 
meeting will be provided notice when the application is slated to return to Council with a 
recommendation. 
 
  
 
 
               
Andrew Martin, MCIP RPP     Reviewed by CAO 
Planner/EDO                                                    



Lands to
be rezoned

Zone 4a
(34 units)

La
nd

s t
o b

e r
ezo

ne
d

Zo
ne

 4a
 (1

2 u
nit

s)

SUBJECT PROPERTY

Snyder's Road East

Brubacher S
treet

CN / G
EXR Railway

F
orler S

treet

Official Plan Amendment Application 01/13
Zone Change Application 08/13

´



Andrew
Text Box
SITE PLANTRIBUTES OF BADEN



Andrew
Text Box
SITE PLANHERNER WOODS



‐ 1 ‐ 

 

To:   The Corporation of the Township of Wilmot   

Development Services Department 

Attn:   Andrew Martin                Feb 3, 2014 

 

 

RE:  Official Plan and Amendment Application 01/13 

Zone Change Application 08/13 

Labreche Patterson & Associates Inc./Westcap Development Inc. 

296, 302 and 308 Snyder’s Road East, Baden 

 

As stated in the original application, our property is directly adjacent to the proposed development.  Since 

the last meeting on June 3, 2013, we feel there has been little change or action regarding our indicated 

points.  No direct information has been provided to address our original concerns.  Notification was 

provided in mid‐January (correspondence dated January 10, 2014) of the proposed revisions. WestCap 

Development Inc. had over 6 months to prepare revisions and amendments with the advantage of 

employing subject matter experts.  Lay people and loyal Baden residents were given only 3 weeks to review 

development plans to vet out any points that may have (or not) been addressed in a series of drawings and 

plans which were in excess of 100 pages.  With this in mind, the meeting on Feb 10th, 2014 should 

encompass an update and information session and NO decision reached to allow residents adequate time 

to review and respond. 

 

Our original concerns from May/June 2013 remain:  

“In the proposed plan as provided by the Township, there is no barrier to restrict access to our property 

from the new development [now retaining wall and board on board fencing], which has a high potential to 

affect the enjoyment of our property.  Specifically, our concerns are regarding the potential effects of 

increasing the population density by replacing a single business with 14 individual units.  Without an 

appropriate barrier, there is now a fourteen‐fold increase in potential for direct access to our property. 

Additionally, we have concerns over several other potential mechanical impacts of the development 

including grading and runoff, privacy, and safety to our property. All of these items have the potential to 

negatively impact the usage, enjoyment, and value of our property if not properly addressed prior to the 

approval of the zoning change and construction of the development.” 

In addition to and expanding on some original concerns, with all points specifically relating to the property 

at 288 Snyder’s Road East: 

 Effect on our property value (we will be a property with over 14 units directly adjacent to our 

property) 

 Effective of our enjoyment of our property, privacy and security will diminish with 14 adjacent 

properties (are these 2‐story or single story dwellings?).  Are there other single residential 

properties in Baden adjacent to 14 neighbouring families? 

 An existing swimming pool is not indicated on the drawings.  Our enjoyment will be compromised 

by the additional activities on the adjacent properties.  Noise levels will increase.  During the 



‐ 2 ‐ 

 

proposed construction, measures must be taken to ensure our pool and property remain usable 

and protected?  Contamination from construction (dirt and debris) may be a constant threat 

increasing maintenance costs and affecting personal enjoyment. 

 What are the access requirements for the construction of the proposed retaining wall?  It appears 

to be extremely close to the property line.   

 The Environmental Impact Study reference page 10, Section 4.1.2 Vegetation Loss states “the 

neighbouring homeowner has authorized removal of the hedgerow trees immediately west of the 

development site”.  This is accurate for the trees removed, however, the provision was the stumps 

would be ground down or removed and they would be replaced with our acceptance of an 

alternative (trees, visual block).  Trees are referenced in the development drawings but there are 

no details and are non‐specific. 

 What is the composition and visual proposal of the retaining wall?  This must be aesthetically 

pleasing since it will span two thirds of the east property line.  What is the maintenance plan for 

the board on board fencing to eliminate 14 different fence elements in the future??  This type of 

fence has the tendency to severely degrade both visually and structurally (warping, splitting, 

weathering).   

 Block A does not indicate any form of fencing.  The retaining wall begins at Block B.  Please clarify. 

 Blocks A and B appear to be single story dwellings on drawing 6.  Please clarify. 

 The effect of runoff with the addition of the retaining wall must not alter the use of the property.  

Will the retaining wall affect the water flow or create pooling potentially reducing usable land?  

 

General concerns: 

 Will these units be available to purchase and subsequently be rented out adding to additional 

turnover and inconsistent upkeep of each of the units or are there policies in place to prevent this 

type of ownership? 

 Will Blocks C/D at the rear of the property be priced at a premium due to their location (fewer 

neighbours, less traffic)? 

 Traffic will increase along Snyder’s Road bringing congestion and additional noise. 

 

In the limited time available to review the posted documentation, there appears to be inconsistencies and 
omissions not limited to the following: 

 Landscaping details (artistic license or actual plans) 

 Inconsistency in fence height references on drawings (Drawing 2 vs. Drawing 8) 

 Conflicting number of units  

 Reference to building type for Blocks A&B  
 
 
Marilyn & Dave Fewster 

288 Snyder’s Rd. East 

Baden, Ontario 















1

Andrew Martin

From: Andrew Martin
Sent: Thursday, November 07, 2013 9:12 AM
To: tom_suliman@stswr.ca
Cc: Alastair Duncan
Subject: RE: Development on Snyder's Rd E in Baden

Tom, 
This development is in the preliminary stages and has not received development approval at 
this time. The applicant is still reviewing development options for the site and we expect to 
receive a revised concept for public review in the near future. As the development has not 
been approved I cannot estimate if or when the site will actually develop. I will note your 
concerns in the file so they can be addressed at the appropriate time.  
 
______________________ 
Andrew Martin, MCIP RPP 
Planner/EDO 
Township of Wilmot 
519.634.8444x245 
www.wilmot.ca 
Twitter: @WilmotTownship 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Tom Suliman [mailto:tom_suliman@stswr.ca]  
Sent: November‐06‐13 1:42 PM 
To: Alastair Duncan 
Subject: Development on Snyder's Rd E in Baden 
 
Hello Alastair, 
 
I was wondering if you could provide me with some information or direct me to someone I can 
contact regarding a development project at 296‐302 Snyder's Rd E in Baden. I have a school 
bus stop on the corner of Snyder's Rd and Forler St (which is adjacent to this development). 
The parents of the students are concerned about the future construction in the area and the 
impact it will have on their bus stop. 
 
Would it be possible to get a rough estimate on when construction is set to begin and on what 
impact the project will have to the sidewalks in the area? 
 
Thanks, 
 
Tom Suliman 
Transportation Technician 
Student Transportation Services of Waterloo Region 
4275 King St. E. Unit 130 
Kitchener, Ontario N2P 2E9 
Phone # (519) 650‐4934 ext. 228 
Fax #     (519) 650‐2979   
E‐mail: tom_suliman@stswr.ca 
 









To:   The Corporation of the Township of Wilmot   

Development Services Department 

Attn:   Andrew Martin                May 27, 2013 

 

 

RE:  Official Plan and Amendment Application 01/13 

Zone Change Application 08/13 

Lebreche Patterson & Associates Inc./WestCap Development Inc. 

296, 302 and 308 Snyder’s Road East Baden 

 

As the property owner of 288 Snyder’s Rd East directly adjacent to the Herner Woods development, it is 

our desire that the rezoning have minimal impact on our enjoyment, safety, privacy, and no devaluing of 

our property.  

Prior to the rezoning plan, the Herner family business and residence consisted of a single home dwelling 

and adjacent to our property, a single level business structure.  Their business operated during set hours 

and was street facing, all of which restricted public traffic to our property and maintained a high degree 

of privacy. 

In the proposed plan as provided by the Township, there is no barrier to restrict access to our property 

from the new development, which has a high potential to affect the enjoyment of our property.  

Specifically, our concerns are regarding the potential effects of increasing the population density by 

replacing a single business with 14 individual units.  Without an appropriate barrier, there is now a 

fourteen‐fold increase in potential for direct access to our property. Additionally, we have concerns over 

several other potential mechanical impacts of the development including grading and runoff, privacy, 

and safety to our property. All of these items have the potential to negatively impact the usage, 

enjoyment, and value of our property if not properly addressed prior to the approval of the zoning 

change and construction of the development. 

We look forward to further information regarding the plans for the development including details as to 

how they resolve our specific concerns noted above.  It is paramount that these concerns be addressed 

to ensure that the value and enjoyment of our property be retained and protected, as well as those 

residential properties on the Herner Wood development that directly abuts 288 Snyder’s Rd. E. 

Marilyn & Dave Fewster 

288 Snyder’s Rd. E 

Baden, Ontario 



1

Andrew Martin

From: L SCOZZAFAVA [scozz@rogers.com]
Sent: Tuesday, May 28, 2013 11:35 PM
To: Andrew Martin
Cc: scozz
Subject: COMMENTS: Official Plan Amendment 01/13 Zone Change Application 08/13

COMMENTS related to 
  

Official Plan Amendment 01/13 

Zone Change Application 08/13 

Labreche Patterson & Associates Inc. / Westcap 
Development Inc. 

296, 303, and 308 Snyder's Road East / 
Brubacher Street, Baden 

  
Hello 
 

I am a resident of Baden and live at 9 Erbach crescent near a portion of the proposed 
development.    
  
I am concerned about the rezoning of the light industrial area 296, 302 & 308 Snyder’s Road East 
mainly.  
  
I also believe that the 35 Brubacher Street which includes the wetlands should be viewed as a separate 
proposal.    
  
Some questions that come to mind are as follows: 
  
What’s the reasoning for changing light industrial to residential – seems like a development 
push for both so why rezone when other developments are going in as part of approved 
rezoning for residential in Baden? 

  
What about surrounding light industrial (automotive and paint spray) and impacts to them 
related to potential change of use/processes in the future?         
  
What other options are there which will also be in line with Township of Wilmot official plan. 
 Here are some that I would rather see:   
A family who lives in town and wants to have a small industrial business on the side? -
constructing a multi unit light industrial building. 
A family run light industrial business, with a nice house on the double lot.   
  
What direction is town going?  What direction do we want it to go?     
I have concerns related to the wetlands (GRCA) and railway issues for "conveyed land"  
"Remainder of Lands 
The remaining lands at 35 Brubacher Street will remain undeveloped and are intended to be conveyed to the 



2

Township of Wilmot for passive recreational purposes." 
  

I don’t believe I have access from Snyder's Road as I didn’t notice it on the plan.  Is there a 
path or easement proposed?  What is passive recreational purposes?     
  
What are the costs for developing and maintaining a passive recreational area?   
  
-Can the township benefit more from these development proposals if this will proceed?  After 
all this is a plan that maximizes the profit of the developers.  They are requesting to change 
zones and not even be in compliance with the zone.  I think they can do more.     
  
-What does the plan look like if they built within the proposed zone change.  
- Can we work with them to come up with something that is more beneficial to the township? 

  
This is not an exhaustive list of the concerns or questions that come to light when reviewing 
the extensive documentation that comes along with a proposal of this nature.  Personal 
impact of traffic patterns are foreseen for example.        
  
In short, I believe this scenario should be thoroughly reviewed as to me, portions of the 
proposal do not appear to benefit the township and would not warrant an official plan 
amendment and zone change.  Recreational development of a wetlands area can be costly and liability concerns with township 
recreational lands along a railroad should be considered.     

  
Please contact me if you have any questions.  
 

 Thank you 

Jason Scozzafava 
 



dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.1.1







dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.2.1





T H I S   AGREEMENT MADE THIS               day of                          , 2014. 
 
 
BETWEEN 
 
 
  THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT (LESSOR) 
 
  Hereinafter called the “Township”  
       OF THE FIRST PART 
     and 
 
  THE WILMOT HERITAGE FIRE BRIGADES (LESSEE) 
 
  Hereinafter called the “Brigades” 
       OF THE SECOND PART 
 
 
 
WHEREAS The Township is the registered owner of the premises known as the “Bell” 
building located at 10 Bell Drive in Baden in the Township of Wilmot, in the Regional 
Municipality of Waterloo, in the Province of Ontario. 
 
AND WHEREAS the Township agrees to lease to the Brigades the Bell building on the 
terms and conditions hereinafter set forth. 
 
NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH that in consideration of the 
sum of One ($1.00) Dollar of lawful money of Canada per year for a period of five (5) 
years commencing July 1, 2014 covenants hereinafter set forth. 
 
1. The Lessee covenants with the Lessor: 
 
 1.1 to maintain the premises in a state of cleanliness, and to 

repair any damage caused thereto by their own wilful or 
negligent conduct or that of persons who are permitted on 
the premises by them; 

 
 1.2 to maintain the premises in a good state of repair and fit 

for habitation during the herein lease in order that the 
premises comply with health and safety standards required 
by law; 

 
 1.3 to not erect or affix or remove or change the location or 

style of any partitions or fixtures, without the consent of the 
Lessor; 

 
 1.4 to not assign or sublet without the consent of the Lessor; 
 
 1.5 to pay for hydro 
 
2. It is hereby agreed by and between the said Township and the said Brigades 

that no sign, advertisement or notice shall be inscribed, painted or affixed by 
the said Brigades on any part of the outside or inside of the building 
whatsoever, without the consent of the Township, and furthermore, the 
Brigades, on ceasing to be Lessee of the premises, will, cause any sign as 
aforesaid to be removed or obliterated at its own expense and in a workmanlike 
manner to the satisfaction of the Lessor. 

 
3. The Brigades agrees that it will not carry on upon the premises any business 

that may be deemed a nuisance or by which the insurance on the facility will be 
increased. 



- 2 - 
 
 
4. The Brigade agrees that if during said term it desires to affix or erect partitions, 

counters or fixtures in any part of the walls, floors or ceilings of the facility, it 
may do so at its own expense at any time and from time to time provided that 
the Brigades’ rights to make such alterations to the facility shall be subject to 
the following conditions: 

 
(a) That before undertaking any such alterations, the Brigades shall submit 

to the Township, a plan showing the proposed alterations and shall 
obtain the approval and consent of the Township of same. 

 
(b) That all such alterations shall conform to all building code and by-law 

regulations, then in force affecting the facility.  The Brigades shall be 
responsible for any building permit required for such alterations. 

 
(c) That such alterations shall not be of such kind or extent as to in any 

manner weaken the structure of the facility after the alterations are 
completed or reduce the value of the building. 

 
(d) Building permit fees will be absorbed by the Township. 

 
5 The Brigades agrees to maintain the facilities as detailed in this Agreement and 

its contents and shall pay the cost of any damage to the buildings or lands or 
loss of damage to any equipment belonging to the Township arising out of the 
activities of the Brigades.  

 
6. The Brigades, both during and after the term of this Agreement, shall at all 

times, and at its own cost, expense and risk, defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the Township, its elected officials, officers, employees, volunteers, 
agents, contractors, and all respective heirs, administrators, executors, 
successors and assigns from any and all losses, damages (including, but not 
limited to, incidental, indirect, special and consequential damages, or any loss 
of use, revenue or profit by any person, organization or entity), fines, 
penalties and surcharges, liabilities (including, but not limited to, any and all 
liability for damage to property and injury to persons, including death), 
judgments, claims, demands, causes of action, contracts, suits, actions or 
other proceedings of any kind (including, but not limited to proceedings of a 
criminal, administrative or quasi criminal nature) and expenses (including, but 
not limited to, legal fees on a substantial indemnity basis), which the 
indemnified person or persons may suffer or incur, howsoever caused, 
arising out of or in consequence of or directly or indirectly attributable 
to the activities performed by the Brigades, its agents, employees and 
sub-contractors, whether such losses, damages, fines, penalties and 
surcharges, liabilities, judgments, claims, demands, causes of action, 
contracts, suits, actions or other proceedings of any kind and expenses 
as defined above are due or claimed to be due to the negligence, breach 
of contract, and/or breach of law of the Brigades, its agents, employees 
or sub-contractors. 
 

The Brigades shall insure its undertaking, business and equipment under the 
following coverage so as to protect and indemnify and save harmless the 
Township: 

 
a.)  General Liability Insurance: The Brigades shall maintain liability 

insurance acceptable to the Township throughout the term of this 
Agreement from the date of commencement of this Agreement. 
Coverage shall consist of a comprehensive policy of public liability and 
property damage insurance, with all available coverage 
extensions/endorsements, in an amount of not less than $2,000,000 



- 3 - 
 

per occurrence. Such insurance shall name The Corporation of the 
Township of Wilmot as an additional insured with a cross liability 
endorsement and severability of interests provision. The policy 
SIR/deductible shall not exceed $100,000 per claim and if the policy 
has an aggregate limit, the amount of the aggregate shall be double 
the required per occurrence limit.  

 
b.)  Owned and Non-Owned Automobile Liability Insurance: The 

Brigades shall maintain liability insurance on all Owned, Non-Owned 
and Leased Automobiles to a limit of $2,000,000 per occurrence 
throughout the term of this Agreement.  

 
c.)  Tenant’s Legal Liability: The Brigades shall maintain Tenants Legal 

Liability coverage equal to the amount to replace the building in case of 
its loss. 

 
d.)  Provisions: Prior to the commencement of this Agreement, the 

Brigades shall forward a Certificate of Insurance evidencing this 
insurance with the executed Agreement. The Certificate shall state that 
coverage will not be suspended, voided, cancelled, reduced in 
coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days (ten 10 days if 
cancellation is due to non-payment of premium) prior written notice by 
certified mail to the Township. 

 
It is also understood and agreed that in the event of a claim any deductible or 
self-insured retention under these policies of insurance shall be the sole 
responsibility of the Brigades and that this coverage shall preclude 
subrogation claims against the Township and any other person insured under 
the policy and be primary insurance in response to claims. Any insurance or 
self-insurance maintained by the Township and any other person insured 
under the policy shall be considered excess of the Brigades’ insurance and 
shall not contribute with it. The minimum amount of insurance required herein 
shall not modify, waive or otherwise alter the Brigades’ obligation to fully 
indemnify the Township under this Agreement. 
 
The Township reserves the right to modify the insurance requirements as 
deemed suitable. 

 
7. This agreement shall remain in full force and effect for a period of FIVE (5) 

YEARS unless at any time either party gives three hundred and sixty (360) 
days notice in writing to the other party of its intention to terminate or re-
negotiate this Agreement.  At the time of expiry of this agreement both parties 
shall have the option to renew or renegotiate the terms of this Agreement. 

 
8. This Agreement shall be binding upon both parties and their respective 

successors and assigns. 
 



- 4 - 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the said Brigades has hereunder set its hand and 
seal and the Township has hereunto affixed its corporate seal under the hands of its 
Mayor and Clerk. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed, Sealed and Delivered  ) The Corporation of the 
      ) Township of Wilmot 
 in the presence of   ) 
      ) 
      ) 
      )  
      ) __________________________ 
      ) Mayor 
      ) 
      ) 
      ) 
      ) 
      ) __________________________   
      ) Clerk 
 
         
      ) The Wilmot Heritage  
      ) Fire Brigades 
      ) 
      ) 
      ) 
      ) 
      ) __________________________        
                                 ) President 
      ) 
      ) 
      ) 
      ) 
      ) __________________________        
                                 ) Secretary-Treasurer 



T H I S   AGREEMENT MADE THIS               day of                          , 2014. 
 
 
BETWEEN 
 
 
  THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT (LESSOR) 
 
  Hereinafter called the “Township”  
       OF THE FIRST PART 
     and 
 
  THE WILMOT HERITAGE FIRE BRIGADES (LESSEE) 
 
  Hereinafter called the “Brigades” 
       OF THE SECOND PART 
 
 
 
WHEREAS The Township is the registered owner of the premises known as the “Bell” 
building located at 10 Bell Drive in Baden in the Township of Wilmot, in the Regional 
Municipality of Waterloo, in the Province of Ontario. 
 
AND WHEREAS the Township agrees to lease to the Brigades the Bell building on the 
terms and conditions hereinafter set forth. 
 
NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH that in consideration of the 
sum of One ($1.00) Dollar of lawful money of Canada per year for a period of five (5) 
years commencing July 1, 2014 covenants hereinafter set forth. 
 
1. The Lessee covenants with the Lessor: 
 
 1.1 to maintain the premises in a state of cleanliness, and to 

repair any damage caused thereto by their own wilful or 
negligent conduct or that of persons who are permitted on 
the premises by them; 

 
 1.2 to maintain the premises in a good state of repair and fit 

for habitation during the herein lease in order that the 
premises comply with health and safety standards required 
by law; 

 
 1.3 to not erect or affix or remove or change the location or 

style of any partitions or fixtures, without the consent of the 
Lessor; 

 
 1.4 to not assign or sublet without the consent of the Lessor; 
 
 1.5 to pay for hydro 
 
2. It is hereby agreed by and between the said Township and the said Brigades 

that no sign, advertisement or notice shall be inscribed, painted or affixed by 
the said Brigades on any part of the outside or inside of the building 
whatsoever, without the consent of the Township, and furthermore, the 
Brigades, on ceasing to be Lessee of the premises, will, cause any sign as 
aforesaid to be removed or obliterated at its own expense and in a workmanlike 
manner to the satisfaction of the Lessor. 

 
3. The Brigades agrees that it will not carry on upon the premises any business 

that may be deemed a nuisance or by which the insurance on the facility will be 
increased. 



- 2 - 
 
 
4. The Brigade agrees that if during said term it desires to affix or erect partitions, 

counters or fixtures in any part of the walls, floors or ceilings of the facility, it 
may do so at its own expense at any time and from time to time provided that 
the Brigades’ rights to make such alterations to the facility shall be subject to 
the following conditions: 

 
(a) That before undertaking any such alterations, the Brigades shall submit 

to the Township, a plan showing the proposed alterations and shall 
obtain the approval and consent of the Township of same. 

 
(b) That all such alterations shall conform to all building code and by-law 

regulations, then in force affecting the facility.  The Brigades shall be 
responsible for any building permit required for such alterations. 

 
(c) That such alterations shall not be of such kind or extent as to in any 

manner weaken the structure of the facility after the alterations are 
completed or reduce the value of the building. 

 
(d) Building permit fees will be absorbed by the Township. 

 
5 The Brigades agrees to maintain the facilities as detailed in this Agreement and 

its contents and shall pay the cost of any damage to the buildings or lands or 
loss of damage to any equipment belonging to the Township arising out of the 
activities of the Brigades.  

 
6. The Brigades, both during and after the term of this Agreement, shall at all 

times, and at its own cost, expense and risk, defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the Township, its elected officials, officers, employees, volunteers, 
agents, contractors, and all respective heirs, administrators, executors, 
successors and assigns from any and all losses, damages (including, but not 
limited to, incidental, indirect, special and consequential damages, or any loss 
of use, revenue or profit by any person, organization or entity), fines, 
penalties and surcharges, liabilities (including, but not limited to, any and all 
liability for damage to property and injury to persons, including death), 
judgments, claims, demands, causes of action, contracts, suits, actions or 
other proceedings of any kind (including, but not limited to proceedings of a 
criminal, administrative or quasi criminal nature) and expenses (including, but 
not limited to, legal fees on a substantial indemnity basis), which the 
indemnified person or persons may suffer or incur, howsoever caused, 
arising out of or in consequence of or directly or indirectly attributable 
to the activities performed by the Brigades, its agents, employees and 
sub-contractors, whether such losses, damages, fines, penalties and 
surcharges, liabilities, judgments, claims, demands, causes of action, 
contracts, suits, actions or other proceedings of any kind and expenses 
as defined above are due or claimed to be due to the negligence, breach 
of contract, and/or breach of law of the Brigades, its agents, employees 
or sub-contractors. 
 

The Brigades shall insure its undertaking, business and equipment under the 
following coverage so as to protect and indemnify and save harmless the 
Township: 

 
a.)  General Liability Insurance: The Brigades shall maintain liability 

insurance acceptable to the Township throughout the term of this 
Agreement from the date of commencement of this Agreement. 
Coverage shall consist of a comprehensive policy of public liability and 
property damage insurance, with all available coverage 
extensions/endorsements, in an amount of not less than $2,000,000 



- 3 - 
 

per occurrence. Such insurance shall name The Corporation of the 
Township of Wilmot as an additional insured with a cross liability 
endorsement and severability of interests provision. The policy 
SIR/deductible shall not exceed $100,000 per claim and if the policy 
has an aggregate limit, the amount of the aggregate shall be double 
the required per occurrence limit.  

 
b.)  Owned and Non-Owned Automobile Liability Insurance: The 

Brigades shall maintain liability insurance on all Owned, Non-Owned 
and Leased Automobiles to a limit of $2,000,000 per occurrence 
throughout the term of this Agreement.  

 
c.)  Tenant’s Legal Liability: The Brigades shall maintain Tenants Legal 

Liability coverage equal to the amount to replace the building in case of 
its loss. 

 
d.)  Provisions: Prior to the commencement of this Agreement, the 

Brigades shall forward a Certificate of Insurance evidencing this 
insurance with the executed Agreement. The Certificate shall state that 
coverage will not be suspended, voided, cancelled, reduced in 
coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days (ten 10 days if 
cancellation is due to non-payment of premium) prior written notice by 
certified mail to the Township. 

 
It is also understood and agreed that in the event of a claim any deductible or 
self-insured retention under these policies of insurance shall be the sole 
responsibility of the Brigades and that this coverage shall preclude 
subrogation claims against the Township and any other person insured under 
the policy and be primary insurance in response to claims. Any insurance or 
self-insurance maintained by the Township and any other person insured 
under the policy shall be considered excess of the Brigades’ insurance and 
shall not contribute with it. The minimum amount of insurance required herein 
shall not modify, waive or otherwise alter the Brigades’ obligation to fully 
indemnify the Township under this Agreement. 
 
The Township reserves the right to modify the insurance requirements as 
deemed suitable. 

 
7. This agreement shall remain in full force and effect for a period of FIVE (5) 

YEARS unless at any time either party gives three hundred and sixty (360) 
days notice in writing to the other party of its intention to terminate or re-
negotiate this Agreement.  At the time of expiry of this agreement both parties 
shall have the option to renew or renegotiate the terms of this Agreement. 

 
8. This Agreement shall be binding upon both parties and their respective 

successors and assigns. 
 



- 4 - 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the said Brigades has hereunder set its hand and 
seal and the Township has hereunto affixed its corporate seal under the hands of its 
Mayor and Clerk. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed, Sealed and Delivered  ) The Corporation of the 
      ) Township of Wilmot 
 in the presence of   ) 
      ) 
      ) 
      )  
      ) __________________________ 
      ) Mayor 
      ) 
      ) 
      ) 
      ) 
      ) __________________________   
      ) Clerk 
 
         
      ) The Wilmot Heritage  
      ) Fire Brigades 
      ) 
      ) 
      ) 
      ) 
      ) __________________________        
                                 ) President 
      ) 
      ) 
      ) 
      ) 
      ) __________________________        
                                 ) Secretary-Treasurer 



dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.2.2











dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.2.3







dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.2.4





 
 
 

Township of Wilmot 
REPORT 

 
 

 
REPORT NO.  FIN 2014-10 
 
TO:   Council  
  
PREPARED BY:    Rosita Tse, Director of Finance  
 
DATE:    February 10, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  2014 Municipal Budget 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That  the 2014 Municipal Budget dated February 3, 2014, as recommended by the Ad Hoc 
Budget Advisory Committee, be approved; and 

That the Director of Finance be authorized to prepare the necessary levying by-law to 
raise $6,770,040 for Township purposes from general taxation. 
 
Background: 
  
The Ad Hoc Budget Advisory Committee held meetings on December 9, 2013, January 13, 
January 20, and February 3, 2014 to consider the following aspects of the proposed 2014 
Municipal Budget: 

• Taxation Policy, User Fees and review of Service Level Requests 
• Capital Program & Capital Replacement Reserve Allocations 
• Update 10-Year Capital Forecast 
• Departmental Base Operating Budgets 
• Water and Wastewater Operating Budget and Rates Analysis 

 

 
Discussion: 
 
The Committee directed staff that the 2014 Budget be prepared to reflect an inflationary levy 
increase of 1.20%. Based on the review and analysis of departmental budget proposals, and the 
input of Committee Members and staff during these meetings, the Committee has 
recommended approval of the proposed 2014 Municipal Budget. 

 
 
 

dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.3.1





2/5/2014

1

THE TOWNSHIP OF WILMOTTHE TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT

2014 MUNICIPAL BUDGET

Wilmot is a cohesive, vibrant and welcoming countryside community

• Tax levy increase  limited to 1.20% (2013‐1.30%)

• General Tax Levy set at $6,770,040 (2013 ‐ $6,577,938)

2014 BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS2014 BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS

• Net Operating Expenditures of $6,623,630 (2013 ‐ $6,247,925)

• Capital Program valued at $2,909,550 (2013 ‐ $3,273,500)

• Capital Expenditures funded from taxation $1,617,840 (2013 ‐
$1,495,882)

• Capital Replacement Reserve allocations, including OMPF of 
$504 800 (2013 $328 830)$504,800 (2013 ‐ $328,830)

• New Water and Wastewater Rates effective March 1, 2014 
with an average increase of 4.74 % (2013 – 4.55%) (based on 
35m3 consumption)

Wilmot is a cohesive, vibrant and welcoming countryside community



2/5/2014

2

SOURCES OF REVENUE – GENERAL FUNDSOURCES OF REVENUE – GENERAL FUND

• Tax Levy

• Grants (OMPF) 11%

8%

Grants (OMPF)

• Investment Income 

• Payment in lieu (PIL)

• Supplementary Taxes

78%

11%

Wilmot is a cohesive, vibrant and welcoming countryside community

Taxation

Grants

Investment Income

Payments In Lieu

Supplementary Taxes

DISTRIBUTION OF TOWNSHIP’S EXPENDITURESDISTRIBUTION OF TOWNSHIP’S EXPENDITURES

• Total Township 
Expenditures are 19%

4%

Expenditures are 
distributed as follows:

– Operating Expenditures

– Transfer to Capital 
Program

– Transfer to Capital 

76%

19%

Replacement Reserve 
Funds

– Final payment of Long 
Term Debt

Wilmot is a cohesive, vibrant and welcoming countryside community

Operating Expenses

Transfer to Capital

Transfer to Reserves

Long‐Term Debt



2/5/2014

3

• Recreation Services

• General Government

DISTRIBUTION OF OPERATING EXPENDITURESDISTRIBUTION OF OPERATING EXPENDITURES

11%
3%

General Government

• Public Works

• Protective Services

• Cultural Services

• Development Services

42%

22%

20%

Wilmot is a cohesive, vibrant and welcoming countryside community

Recreation Services

General Government

Public Works

Protective Services

Cultural Services

Development Services

DISTRIBUTION OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURESDISTRIBUTION OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

• Roads & Bridges

• Parks Improvements  41%

8%
7%

(incl. SplashPad)

• Equipment

• Vehicles 

• Facilities

• Street Lights

20%

20%

Street Lights 

• Other (DC Study, 
Webpage Upgrade, 
Grandstand Murals)

Wilmot is a cohesive, vibrant and welcoming countryside community

Roads & Bridges
Park Improvements (Incl. SplashPad)
Equipment
Vehicles 
Facilities
Other
Street Lights



2/5/2014

4

SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDINGSOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDING
• General Levy

• Government Grants
7.9% 4.6%

• User‐pay reserve funds

• Fundraising

• Development Charges

• Trust Fund

• Sale of Vehicles

55.6%
20.8%

9.6%

Sale of Vehicles

Wilmot is a cohesive, vibrant and welcoming countryside community

General Levy
Government Grants
User‐pay Reserve Funds
Fundraising 
Development Charges
Trust Fund
Sale of Vehicles

• Levy Impact is an 

2014 BUDGET IMPACT2014 BUDGET IMPACT

20%

additional $9.71 
annually for a 
household with 
average $291,500 
assessment

56%
24%

20%

Wilmot is a cohesive, vibrant and welcoming countryside community

Region of Waterloo
Township of Wilmot
School Boards



2/5/2014

5

• Water/Wastewater

2014 BUDGET IMPACT2014 BUDGET IMPACT

12%
• Water/Wastewater 
User Fees result in an 
additional $6.64 per 
bill (based upon 35m3)

53%

22%

13%

Wilmot is a cohesive, vibrant and welcoming countryside community

Regional Charges
Infrastructure Replacement
Operational Costs
Staffing Costs

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACTSTRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT

• WRC Programming • Community Events Sign

We are an 
engaged 

community

We protect 
our natural

We have a 
prosperous

We enjoy 
our quality 

of life

• Accessibility Upgrades
• Grandstand Murals
• Municipal Grants
• Splashpad

Community Events Sign
• Website Upgrades

Wilmot is a cohesive, vibrant and welcoming countryside community

our natural 
environment 

prosperous 
economy• Economic Dev. Promotion

• Castle Kilbride Promotion
• Infrastructure Maintenance

• Reforestation
• Community Parks
• Trail Development



dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.4.1





















 
 
 

Township of Wilmot 
REPORT 

 
 

 
REPORT NO.  DS 2014-05  
 
TO:   Council  
  
PREPARED BY:    Andrew Martin, Planner/EDO 
 
DATE:    February 10, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  Wilmot Trails Master Plan Implementation Consultant Selection 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That Report DS 2014-05 be received for information. 
 
Background: 
 
On November 18, 2013 Council approved the Wilmot Trails Master Plan (WTMP) and 
authorized staff to proceed with a Request for Proposals (RFP) for consulting services for 
completion of the implementation plan. 
 
Discussion: 
 
A formal RFP was released on December 11, 2013 with a submission deadline of January 6, 
2014. 
 
Bid documents were picked up sixteen consulting firms. Proposals were submitted by: 

 MMM Group Limited (Kitchener) 
 GSP Group Inc. (Kitchener) 
 Stantec Consulting Ltd. (Kitchener) 
 Sustainable Trails (2011) Ltd. (Port Hope) 
 Seferian Design Group Limited (Burlington) 

 
The Township selection committee for this RFP consisted of the Director of Facilities and 
Recreation Services, the Director of Public Works, the Director of Development Services, and 
the Planner/EDO. The main evaluation criteria included approach/methodology, 
experience/references, project team and price. 
 
The proposal from Seferian Design Group scored high in all criteria evaluated and staff 
unanimously agreed that their submission be selected. Staff were pleased with the project 
managers experience, local knowledge and the teams understanding of the requested scope of 
work. The contract for consulting services was awarded to Seferian Design Group in the amount 
of $15,945 (net of HST rebate).   

dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.5.1



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Strategic Plan Conformity: 
 
The Implementation Plan is an integral part of the WTMP. As discussed in the WTMP, when 
complete, the plan will implement the four goals of the Township’s Strategic Plan. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
The Wilmot Trails Implementation Plan will be funded by the Forest Glen Trail trust fund as 
referenced within the 2014 Capital Budget. The budget estimate was $20,000.00 
 
Conclusion: 
 
At the time of writing this report, the project initiation meeting was scheduled with Seferian 
Design Group for February 6, 2014. The project is anticipated to be completed by May 16, 2014. 
 
  
 
 
               
Andrew Martin, MCIP RPP     Reviewed by CAO 
Planner/EDO                                                    



dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.6.1









dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.6.2













 

Report: P-14-011 

1547314  Page 1 of 16 

Region of Waterloo 

Planning, Housing and Community Services 

Transportation Planning 

 

To: Chair Jim Wideman and Members of the Planning and Works Committee 

Date:  January 28, 2014   File Code: D09-90 

Subject: Regional Transportation Master Plan – Progress Report 

Recommendation 

For information. 

Summary 

The Region of Waterloo is already the fourth largest community in Ontario and the tenth 
largest community in Canada. Provincial forecasts continue to identify Waterloo Region 
as a major growth centre for the future, with an estimated population of 730,000 and an 
additional 80,000 jobs being anticipated by the year 2031. The Regional Official Plan 
(ROP), approved by Regional Council, establishes the vision and means of 
accommodating this growth, and is founded on limiting outward growth, higher densities 
of development, and the protection of agricultural lands and environmental systems. In 
order to accommodate growth and to achieve this vision, an effective supporting 
transportation system is essential. 

The year 2014 marks the fifteenth anniversary of the Region’s first transportation master 
plan (completed in 1999) that focused on investing in a variety of modes of 
transportation (i.e. private vehicles, public transit, walking and cycling). The previous 
transportation master plans of 1976 and 1986 were more focused on moving large 
volumes of private vehicles on Regional roads, compared to today’s focus of moving 
people in a variety of ways. 

In the year 2000, the Region of Waterloo created Grand River Transit, initially assuming 
fleet and facilities from the Cities of Cambridge and Kitchener and growing the system 
to its present form. 

dawnm
Typewritten Text
10.1



January 28, 2014  Report: P-14-011 

1547314  Page 2 of 16 

In 2010, the Regional Transportation Master Plan (RTMP) was completely revised and 
updated, and further refined to reflect the construction of Rapid Transit (ION), approved 
in 2011 and scheduled to be operational in 2017. 

The purpose of this report is to provide highlights of transportation investment and the 
measurable results of that investment, focusing on the last fifteen years. Among those 
results are as follows: 

 Grand River Transit annual ridership has already achieved the RTMP forecast for 
2016, four years ahead of schedule, and is now 22 million; 

 Current ridership on iXpress and Route 7 between Conestoga Mall and Fairview 
Park Mall is 20,000 rides per day, which is approaching the 2017 target ridership 
of 25,000 on the ION light rail; 

 Since 2006, cycling lanes have nearly doubled to almost 300 km; 
 Since 2004, almost $250 million has been invested in expansion of the Regional 

road network; 
 Since 2009, the Province has invested about $150 million in Regional highways; 
 The Transportation Management Association has been promoted to more than 

8% of the Region-wide workforce, and in one year 5% of TMA-participating 
employees surveyed have shifted from driving alone to more sustainable modes 
of travel; 

 All Grand River Transit buses are now fully accessible; and 
 The EasyGo electronic traveller information system has increased to over 5 

million uses annually, compared to less than 1 million in 2008. 

This report will be posted on the Region’s website as part of the Big Shift Toolbox, to 
help the community and prospective investors understand the Region’s focus on 
transportation infrastructure that will sustain compact urban redevelopment. 

Report 

Overview 

The Region of Waterloo is already the fourth largest community in Ontario and the tenth 
largest community in Canada. Provincial growth forecasts continue to identify Waterloo 
Region as a major growth centre for the future, with an estimated population of 730,000 
and an additional 80,000 jobs being anticipated by the year 2031. The Region’s 
approach to accommodating new growth is defined in the Regional Official Plan (ROP), 
approved by Council in 2009. It is founded on limiting outward expansion of new 
development, higher densities of development, and the protection of agricultural lands 
and sensitive environmental areas (e.g. areas of groundwater recharge and discharge, 
the source of about 80% of our water consumption). In short, new growth is to be 
accommodated in a more compact way, with a significant focus on new development 
within existing built-up areas and excellence in urban design. Over 50% of new 
residential development is already occurring in built-up areas, and higher densities of 
development that meet or exceed the Provincial Growth Plan are already being 
achieved. 



January 28, 2014  Report: P-14-011 

1547314  Page 3 of 16 

The accommodation of growth in a more compact way is dependent on an effective 
supporting transportation system. The 2010 Regional Transportation Master Plan 
(RTMP), approved by Regional Council, identified a plan for moving people that shifted 
toward even greater investment in transit, cycling and walking. A key element of the 
RTMP is rapid transit, and the ION system that was approved in 2011 will move people 
between Cambridge, Kitchener and Waterloo beginning in 2017. Absent this strategy, 
the Region would be faced with having to construct 500 new lane kilometers of new 
roadways. This is not only a costly proposition, but it would also require major new land 
takings in a variety of neighbourhoods and communities throughout the Region. 

Regional Transportation Master Plan 

The Regional Transportation Master Plan (RTMP) was approved by Regional Council in 
2010 and provides strategic direction for planning, designing and building a regional 
transportation network that supports a compact urban form, vibrant urban centres, 
protects the environment and enhances the quality of life for citizens. It recognizes that 
the estimated 170,000 more people and 80,000 more jobs by 2031 need to be 
accommodated by the transportation system. The RTMP focuses on moving people 
instead of moving automobiles, and investments in public transit and active 
transportation are needed to avoid constructing 500 lane-kilometres of new roads. 

The development of the RTMP reflected four major goals for the transportation system: 

1. Optimize the system: Make the most of the existing transportation network and 
minimize the need for new infrastructure that does not promote the other goals. 
For example, optimize traffic signal timings instead of adding travel lanes. 

2. Promote choice: Offer competitive alternatives for moving people and goods in 
an integrated and seamless manner, and reduce single occupant vehicle trips. 
For example, improve the public transit and active transportation networks. 

3. Foster a strong economy: Provide a transportation system that supports the 
retention of existing businesses and attracts sustainable economic activity. For 
example, eliminate bottlenecks in road networks that delay trucks. 

4. Support sustainable development: Encourage sustainable growth in both urban 
and rural areas, and reduce transportation contributions to climate change. For 
example, implement Rapid Transit and transit-supportive land uses and 
densities. 

The RTMP provides a comprehensive planning framework for sustainable transportation 
in Waterloo Region, and presents an ambitious but realistic action plan. Rapid Transit 
within the Central Transit Corridor is the foundation of the RTMP, and the ION system 
will support the built-form objectives developed in the Provincial Growth Plan and in the 
ROP. An enhanced network of express and local bus routes integrated with the ION 
system and improvements to the active transportation network will further enhance 
transportation choice. Strategic road improvements will continue to be needed as well. 

The following sections highlight a variety of Regional investments and the results of 
those investments. 



January 28, 2014  Report: P-14-011 

1547314  Page 4 of 16 

Grand River Transit 

Public transit ridership is directly related to investments in service. While the Regional 
population continued to grow during the 1990s, cutbacks in service led to stagnant 
ridership. However, this trend reversed itself after Grand River Transit (GRT) was 
established in 1999 and investments in service were sustained (please see Attachment 
1). The table below shows how GRT ridership growth has outpaced most other 
Canadian transit systems: 

Canadian Transit Ridership Growth 1999-2012 

Transit System 
Ridership (millions) Annual 

Growth 
Rate (%) 

1999 2012 

Grand River Transit 9.4 21.3 6.5% 
Brampton 6.6 18.4 8.2% 
Durham 5.7 10.3 4.7% 

York 7.0 22.2 9.3% 
Windsor 5.8 6.4 0.8% 

Mississauga 23.3 34.8 3.1% 
Ottawa 74.7 101.0 2.3% 
Sudbury 3.0 4.4 3.0% 
London 14.6 23.5 3.7% 

Hamilton 18.3 21.8 1.4% 
Thunder Bay 3.5 3.7 0.4% 

Toronto 392.6 514.0 2.1% 
Ontario average 589.3 821.8 2.6% 

Canadian average 1,437.0 2,025.6 2.7% 
 

The transit system is well positioned to support the introduction of ION rapid transit, 
which was approved in 2011 and will start providing light rail transit service in 2017. The 
projected year one daily ridership on the ION LRT is 25,000. Today, Route 7 and 
iXpress between Fairview Park Mall and Conestoga Mall, which would be replaced by 
LRT, already carry about 20,000 daily rides. The larger-capacity LRT vehicles operating 
in their own right-of-way will carry existing and future transit riders more efficiently, 
comfortably and reliably, and will also allow the redeployment of 19 buses and 50,000 
service hours annually to improve the GRT network, such as by adding an iXpress route 
on Ottawa Street. 

Waterloo Region residents have been very receptive to express bus service, with 
iXpress ridership quickly meeting or exceeding targets as shown in the table below. 
While iXpress 200 will be replaced by ION, iXpress 201 and 202 are key corridors that 
will be fully integrated with ION. The success of the iXpress corridors suggests that the 
regional transit network is evolving into an attractive transportation system, and this 
process will continue once ION is operational and additional iXpress corridors are 
implemented. 



January 28, 2014  Report: P-14-011 

1547314  Page 5 of 16 

iXpress Ridership (Target and Actual) 

Route 
Average Daily Ridership 

Target (Year) Actual (Year) 

iXpress 200 
3,800 (2005)
5,000 (2007)

3,200 (2005) 
4,900 (2007) 

10,000 (2013) 
iXpress 201 Fischer-Hallman 3,900 (2014) 3,600 (2013) 
iXpress 202 University 2,600 (2016) 3,400 (2013) 

 

Based on achieving peak hour transit mode share targets, the RTMP also established 
annual transit ridership targets. The RTMP 2016 annual ridership target of 20.2 million 
rides was achieved in 2012. GRT carried 22 million rides in 2013 and is on-track to 
achieve the 2021 RTMP target of 28 million by 2019 (please see Attachment 2). 

Annual transit trips per capita has also been growing rapidly, as shown in Attachment 3. 
Since 2000, this number has grown from 26 to 49, and the transit system is well-
positioned to meet the RTMP target of 79 annual transit trips per capita by 2034. This is 
a realistic target for the Region: Winnipeg (73 trips per capita) and Quebec City (83 trips 
per capita) both currently achieve similar annual riderships with similar service area 
populations, and neither have significant higher-order transit systems. 

Public transit also plays an important role in accommodating inter-regional travel 
demand. GO Train service between Kitchener and Toronto started service in December 
2011 with four trains per day. GO Bus service between the Region and Mississauga 
launched in October 2009, with about 350 riders per day, but has grown rapidly and by 
June 2012 carried more than 800 riders per day, with double this demand on Thursdays 
and Fridays. Additionally, while detailed ridership data is unavailable, Greyhound 
operates approximately 40 buses per day between Kitchener and Toronto. 

Continued investment in public transit since 1999 has led to the following results: 

• GRT ridership has increased from 9.5 million to 22 million; 
• Revenue service hours have increased from 340,000 to 640,000 annually; 
• The bus fleet has grown from 140 buses to 251 buses; 
• The bus fleet has changed from 50% accessible to 100% accessible; 
• All buses have automated audio and visual next bus stop announcements; 
• MobilityPLUS ridership on conventional buses has increased from 45,000 in 2004 

to more than 140,000 (more than 30% of total MobilityPLUS ridership); 
• An additional 180 shelters and 490 concrete landing pads have been 

constructed; 
• Existing passenger terminals at Conestoga Mall, Fairview Park Mall and 

Cambridge Centre have been expanded; 
• New passenger terminals at Highland Hills Mall, Forest Glen Plaza, Sportsworld 

and The Boardwalk have been constructed; 
• Since 2005, the UPass program has expanded from 10,000 to more than 40,000 

students, and now generates about 6,500,000 annual trips; 



January 28, 2014  Report: P-14-011 

1547314  Page 6 of 16 

• Annual fare increases and service improvements that increase ridership have 
combined to increase the cost-recovery ratio from 37.6 in 2010 to 40.6 in 2013; 

• Since 2010, the net operating cost per rider has declined from $2.11 to $1.97; 
• The EasyGo traveller information system has grown to over 5 million uses per 

year, up from less than 1 million in 2008; and 
• Real-time passenger information displays at iXpress stations have grown from 25 

displays in 2007 and will be 112 displays by early 2014. 

Active Transportation (Walking and Cycling) 

Walking and cycling are also important modes of travel that support the policy direction 
of Places to Grow, the ROP and the RTMP. Region-wide, the goal is to increase the 
share of walking and cycling during the PM peak hour from 7.8% in 2006 to 12.0% in 
2031. Within future high density growth nodes and transit station areas, transportation 
design choices will prioritize walking and cycling. 

To achieve this, the RTMP recommended updating the Cycling Master Plan and adding 
a Pedestrian Master Plan to create an Active Transportation Master Plan (ATMP). Walk 
Cycle Waterloo Region (the ATMP) aims to create a comprehensive network that 
promotes transportation choice and provides a comfortable experience for users of all 
ages and experience levels. Similar to building the public transit network, creating a 
comprehensive active transportation network will require sustained investment. For 
example, the Region is about halfway to its goal of ensuring all Regional roads in urban 
areas have sidewalks on both sides. A sustained commitment to funding the ATMP 
would enable this goal to be essentially completed within ten years. 

Active transportation has seen measurable growth: 

• A review of 2,600 turning movement counts completed since 2004 suggests that 
walking demand has been increasing by about 2% per year, and cycling demand 
by about 5% per year, while automobile demand has been increasing by about 
0.5% per year; 

• Since 2006, the cycling facilities on Regional roads (including on-road bike lanes, 
multi-use trails, shared lanes and paved shoulders) have nearly doubled from 
149 km to 289 km; and 

• Between 2001 and 2005, bike racks were added to all GRT buses. 

Transportation Demand Management 

To complement the supply of transportation infrastructure, Transportation Demand 
Management (TDM) aims to reduce and optimize the demand on the transportation 
system. This is accomplished in a variety of ways, such as encouraging changes in 
mode choice, time of travel, need to travel or other behaviours. The Region’s TDM 
program is called TravelWise and provides services such as online carpool matching 
software, discounted GRT Corporate Passes and an Emergency Ride Home service. 
The Region also invests in Grand River CarShare. 



January 28, 2014  Report: P-14-011 

1547314  Page 7 of 16 

In 2012, the TravelWise program established a Transportation Management Association 
(TMA), which aims to connect employers interested in TDM initiatives and achieve 
meaningful, long-term changes to transportation behaviour. Current members of the 
TMA include the Cities of Cambridge, Kitchener and Waterloo, the University of 
Waterloo and Wilfrid Laurier University, Blackberry, SunLife Financial and many other 
organizations. 

TDM is another rapidly evolving aspect of Regional transportation: 

• The Region has completed 4 individualised marketing campaigns since 2009 in 
various neighbourhoods around the Region; 

• Grand River CarShare, started locally in 1998 with 1 car and 10 members, now 
has 23 vehicles and more than 600 members in the Region, and 14 vehicles and 
more than 400 members in Hamilton, St. Catharines, London and Guelph; 

• The TMA has grown to 20 participating organizations representing over 23,000 
employees, or about 8.2% of today’s workforce; and 

• In one year, TMA workplaces saw an average decrease of 5% in the portion of 
employees driving alone to work, and increases in cycling, walking, carpooling 
and public transit. 

Regional Investment in Roads and Bridges 

Despite the significant investments described above, many Regional residents will 
continue to use private automobiles and many Regional businesses will continue to 
move goods by truck, so a well functioning system of roads will continue to be critical to 
the Regional economy. The RTMP includes strategic road improvements designed to 
accommodate increased travel demand in areas not well served by public transit. Future 
road improvements will also be implemented to improve traffic operations and remove 
bottlenecks. 

Since 2004, the Region has completed 82 expansion projects on Regional roads and 
bridges, totalling an investment of $247 million (please see Attachment 4), including: 

 The Fairway Road bridge ($50 million) has provided a new link across the Grand 
River; 

 The Hespeler Road railway bridge ($25 million) has improved safety and reduced 
delays for both drivers and trains; 

 The Maple Grove Road widening and railway grade separation ($18 million) has 
improved safety and reduced delays for both drivers and trains providing an 
important goods movement improvement for the East Side Lands; 

 Ira Needles Boulevard ($35 million) is a major north-south Regional road on the 
west side of Kitchener and Waterloo that provides access to The Boardwalk; and 

 The Weber Street widening and railway bridge (ongoing, $32 million to-date) will 
increase capacity, reduce delays and improve safety. 

The Region continues to look for opportunities to improve the performance of Regional 
roads other than adding lanes. Modern roundabouts are increasingly being used as a 
means of improving traffic flow while reducing injury collisions at intersections. Regional 



January 28, 2014  Report: P-14-011 

1547314  Page 8 of 16 

road corridors with traffic signals can be optimized to improve the progression of traffic, 
saving travel time at very low cost. Traffic signals can also be outfitted with accessibility 
improvements such as audible signals and pedestrian countdown timers to improve 
safety for all users. 

Recent improvements on Regional roads include the following: 

• Since 2010, 12 control area optimization studies have been completed, resulting 
in average travel time savings of 13.7% for vehicles; 

• Since 2004, 19 roundabouts have been constructed; 
• In the past five years, 66 signalized intersections have been outfitted with 

pedestrian countdown signals; and 
• Since 2012, the Region has installed 17 accessible traffic signals and is replacing 

equipment at 42 locations to meet the requirements of the Accessibility for 
Ontarians with Disabilities Act. 

Provincial Investment in Roads 

Although the Region is generally self-contained, with about 90% of travel by Regional 
residents remaining within the Region, inter-regional travel on Provincial highways is still 
important to the Regional economy. Within the past five years, the Ministry of 
Transportation has widened Highway 8 south of Fairway Road ($60 million) and will 
soon complete the widening of Highway 7/8 between Highway 8 and Fischer-Hallman 
Road ($90 million). Major commitments have also been made to widen Highway 401 
between Highway 8 and Hespeler Road and to construct the new Highway 7 between 
Kitchener and Guelph. 

Community Consultation and Broader Collaboration 

The Region continues to improve the processes it uses to consult with stakeholders and 
collaborate with other levels of government. The public was extensively consulted on 
the RTMP itself, Rapid Transit and the ongoing ATMP. The Regional Transportation 
Corridor Design Guidelines, which establish preferred designs for different 
classifications of Regional road and aim to improve stakeholder expectations in advance 
of Regional road projects, were also completed and updated recently. 

Inter-regional transportation projects involving other levels of government are also 
significant opportunities for improved collaboration. The Region has been working with 
the Cities of Brantford and Guelph, and Brant and Wellington Counties, on an inter-
regional transportation planning initiative. Data collection has completed and a Terms of 
Reference is being drafted to continue this work. 

Additionally, the Region recently committed to signing the Charter for the Western 
Golden Horseshoe Municipal Network. Along with the Regions of Halton, Niagara, and 
Peel, and the City of Hamilton, the Municipal Network aims to improve communications 
between municipalities and the Province on matters of inter-regional transportation and 
economic development. 



January 28, 2014  Report: P-14-011 

1547314  Page 9 of 16 

This report will be posted on the Region’s website as part of the Big Shift Toolbox, to 
help the community and prospective investors understand the Region’s focus on 
transportation infrastructure that will sustain compact urban redevelopment. 

Update on Key RTMP Action Items 

The RTMP identified key actions that would operationalize the implementation of the 
RTMP and contribute to achieving the 2031 transportation vision. Attachment 5 provides 
a general update on the action items. 

Area Municipal Consultation/Coordination 

This report has been forwarded to all Area Municipalities, and Regional staff continue to 
work together to ensure that upper and lower tier initiatives are well coordinated. For 
example, area municipal Councillors and staff regularly participate on Regional project 
teams, such as: 

 Annual transit service improvement plan committees; 
 Transit supportive strategy for Cambridge; 
 Parking coordination committee; and 
 Regional road projects. 

Area municipal and Regional collaboration on the above project teams effectively 
manages a range of community and technical issues that typically arise with 
transportation projects. 

Corporate Strategic Plan 

The RTMP progress monitoring exercise described in this report contributes towards 
accomplishing the objectives of Focus Area #3 (Sustainable Transportation: Develop 
greater, more sustainable and safe transportation choices) of the “Region of Waterloo 
Strategic Focus 2011–2014”. 

Financial Implications 

This report was compiled by staff using ongoing data sources from Planning, 
Transportation, Ministry of Transportation, and the Area Municipalities. The RTMP 
implementation plan continues to be financed on an annual basis through the RTMP 
Reserve Fund, which is to be financed by an annual urban tax levy increase. 
Improvements to Regional roads continue to be funded through a combination of federal 
gas tax subsidies, Regional Development Charges and reserve funds financed through 
the urban tax levy. 



January 28, 2014  Report: P-14-011 

1547314  Page 10 of 16 

Other Department Consultations/Concurrence 

Staff from Transportation and Environmental Services contributed in the preparation of 
this report. 

Attachments 

Attachment 1 – Regional Public Transit Ridership, Service and Population 
Attachment 2 – Regional Public Transit Ridership (Actual and Forecast) 
Attachment 3 – Annual Regular Service Passengers/Capita 
Attachment 4 – Investment in Regional Road Expansion Since 2004 
Attachment 5 – Update on Key RTMP Actions 

Prepared By: Geoffrey Keyworth, Senior Transportation Planning Engineer 
  John Cicuttin, Acting Director, Transportation Planning 

Approved By: Rob Horne, Commissioner, Planning, Housing and Community Services 



January 28, 2014  Report: P-14-011 

1547314  Page 11 of 16 

Attachment 1 – Regional Public Transit Ridership, Service and Population 

 

 



January 28, 2014  Report: P-14-011 

1547314  Page 12 of 16 

Attachment 2 – Regional Public Transit Ridership (Actual and Forecast) 

 

 



January 28, 2014  Report: P-14-011 

1547314  Page 13 of 16 

Attachment 3 – Annual Regular Service Passengers/Capita 

 

 



January 28, 2014  Report: P-14-011 

1547314  Page 14 of 16 

Attachment 4 – Investment in Regional Roads Since 2004 

  

 

R
eg

io
n

al
 R

o
ad

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
(2

00
4 

to
 2

01
3)

T
yp

e
 o

f 
P

ro
je

c
t 

a
n

d
 E

x
a

m
p

le
s

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
ro

je
c

ts
T

o
ta

l C
o

s
t 

T
o

-d
a

te
A

d
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
L

e
ft

-t
u

rn
 a

n
d

 R
ig

h
t-

tu
rn

 la
n

e
s

1
4

$
6

.4
 M

T
ra

ff
ic

 S
ig

n
a

l I
n

s
ta

lla
ti

o
n

s
2

2
$

1
.1

 M
In

te
rs

e
c

ti
o

n
 Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 (
G

ro
w

th
-R

e
la

te
d

)
2

4
$

4
6

.9
 M

H
e

sp
e

le
r 

R
o

a
d

 (
no

rt
h 

o
f D

un
d

a
s 

S
tr

e
e

t)
 r

a
ilw

a
y 

g
ra

d
e

 s
e

p
a

ra
tio

n
$

2
4

.9
 M

S
a

w
m

ill
 R

o
a

d
 a

nd
 A

rt
hu

r 
S

tr
e

e
t

$
2

.1
 M

F
o

un
ta

in
 S

tr
e

e
t a

nd
 D

ic
ki

e
 S

e
ttl

e
m

e
nt

 R
o

a
d

$
1

.7
 M

O
th

e
rs

$
1

8
.2

 M

R
o

a
d

 W
id

e
n

in
g

1
3

$
9

4
.1

 M
W

e
b

e
r 

S
tr

e
e

t (
C

o
lle

g
e

 S
tr

e
e

t t
o

 G
ue

lp
h 

A
ve

nu
e

 -
 in

cl
ud

e
s 

ra
ilw

a
y 

b
ri

d
g

e
)

$
3

1
.6

 M
T

o
w

nl
in

e
 R

o
a

d
 (

C
a

n-
A

m
e

ra
 P

a
rk

w
a

y 
to

 S
a

g
in

a
w

 P
a

rk
w

a
y)

$
8

.8
 M

F
is

ch
e

r-
H

a
llm

a
n 

R
o

a
d

 (
E

rb
 S

tr
e

e
t t

o
 C

o
lu

m
b

ia
 S

tr
e

e
t)

$
6

.1
 M

H
o

m
e

r 
W

a
ts

o
n 

B
o

ul
e

va
rd

 (
a

t H
ig

hw
a

y 
4

0
1

)
$

8
.8

 M
M

a
p

le
 G

ro
ve

 R
o

a
d

 (
C

he
rr

y 
B

lo
ss

o
m

 R
o

a
d

 to
 H

ig
hw

a
y 

8
 -

 in
cl

ud
e

s 
ra

ilw
a

y 
b

ri
d

g
e

)
$

1
8

.2
 M

O
th

e
rs

$
2

0
.6

 M

S
y

s
te

m
 E

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
9

$
9

8
.4

 M
F

a
ir

w
a

y 
R

o
a

d
 E

xt
e

ns
io

n 
(w

e
st

 o
f Z

e
lle

r 
D

ri
ve

 to
 F

o
un

ta
in

 S
tr

e
e

t)
$

5
0

.3
 M

Ira
 N

e
e

d
le

s 
B

o
ul

e
va

rd
 (

H
ig

hw
a

y 
7

/8
 to

 E
rb

sv
ill

e
 R

o
a

d
)

$
3

4
.7

 M
W

e
st

m
o

un
t R

o
a

d
 (

O
ld

 P
o

st
 R

o
a

d
 to

 N
o

rt
hf

ie
ld

 D
ri

ve
)

$
7

.4
 M

O
th

e
rs

$
5

.9
 M

T
o

ta
l E

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 P

ro
je

c
ts

8
2

$
2

4
7

.0
 M

N
o

te
: R

e
ha

b
ili

ta
tio

n 
a

nd
 r

e
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
p

ro
je

ct
s 

(t
o

ta
lli

ng
 m

o
re

 th
a

n 
$

2
8

0
 M

) 
a

re
 n

o
t i

nc
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 a

b
o

ve
 b

ut
 h

a
ve

 in
cl

ud
e

d
:

N
o

rt
hu

m
b

e
rla

nd
 S

tr
e

e
t (

G
re

e
nf

ie
ld

 R
o

a
d

 to
 A

lp
s 

R
o

a
d

)
$

0
.4

 M
K

a
th

e
ri

ne
 S

tr
e

e
t (

T
ri

b
e

 R
o

a
d

 to
 W

a
te

rlo
o

/W
e

lli
ng

to
n 

B
o

un
d

a
ry

)
$

0
.9

 M
M

a
ns

e
r 

R
o

a
d

/A
m

e
nt

 L
in

e
 (

w
ith

in
 th

e
 T

o
w

n 
o

f L
in

w
o

o
d

)
$

4
.4

 M
S

ny
d

e
rs

 R
o

a
d

 (
T

ru
ss

le
r 

R
o

a
d

 to
 N

o
tr

e
 D

a
m

e
 D

ri
ve

)
$

1
.8

 M



January 28, 2014  Report: P-14-011 

1547314  Page 15 of 16 

Attachment 5 – Update on Key RTMP Action Items 

1. Create an Active Transportation Plan – The Region’s Active Transportation 
Master Plan (ATMP), “Walk Cycle Waterloo Region” will be finalized and 
presented to Council in the new year. In 2014, an implementation plan will be 
developed to address the funding requirements for active transportation 
infrastructure and related program initiatives that have been identified in the plan. 

2. Include TDM in the Transportation Impact Study Guidelines – The Transportation 
Impact Study guideline was amended so that a range of TDM measures would 
be considered during the development process which could also result in 
facilitating intensification through reduced parking requirements. Please see 
report P-13-088, September 10, 2013 “Proposed Revisions to the Regional 
Transportation Study Impact Guidelines”. 

3. Incorporate RTMP Transit Initiatives in GRT Business Plan – Implementation of 
the approved 2011 – 2014 GRT Business Plan is well underway with major 
network and service level improvements including two iXpress lines.  

4. Implement Smart Card Fare Payment System - A key initiative recommended in 
the RTMP was to implement a smart card fare payment technology. Recently, 
Council has given staff direction to acquire an electronic transit fare payment 
system through a Request for Proposal process. The RFP is expected to be 
issued early 2014. 

5. Prepare 3-Year TravelWise Action Plan – The TravelWise 3-year TDM action 
plan was completed in 2011. Important results have been achieved including 
establishment of a growing transportation management association, progress on 
incorporating TDM measures in the development review process thereby 
potentially reducing auto use and parking requirements, thereby, facilitating 
intensification. 

6. Study Commuter Parking Opportunities – The opportunity for park and ride and 
kiss and ride continues to be explored at different locations through out the 
region. In 2013, the Region partnered with MTO and Metrolinx to develop a 
combined car-pool and transit facility at Sportsworld Drive. This location provides 
excellent access to highways 8 and 401, GO bus service and GRT service 
including aBRT in 2014. Staff continue to explore park/kiss and ride options near 
rapid transit stations at Northfield and Fairview Park Mall. Commuter parking is 
available near the VIA station and will be provided at the future GO Train station 
near Greenhouse Road in Breslau. 

7. Develop Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) Strategic Plan – Staff have 
developed an ITS strategic plan which will be presented to Council in early 2014. 

8. Establish Parking Coordination Committee – A Parking Coordinating Committee 
was established in 2011 with staff from the region and three urban area 
municipalities. This committee was instrumental in developing the TDM and 
parking management initiatives that were incorporated into the updated 



January 28, 2014  Report: P-14-011 

1547314  Page 16 of 16 

Transportation Impact Study. The committee is currently working on a parking 
policy for station areas to facilitate intensification. 

9. Develop Goods Movement Study – The terms of reference for this study continue 
to be developed with anticipation of starting the study in 2014. 

10. Work with Province on Strategic Transportation Study for GTA West – Staff 
continue to collaborate with the MTO, City of Guelph, County of Wellington, City 
of Brantford, and County of Brant. A comprehensive data collection process has 
been completed and the scope and objectives of the study continue to be 
developed. It is expected this study will be initiated in 2014. 

11. Work with Province, Metrolinx/GO Transit, VIA on improved Interregional Transit 
Connections – Staff continue to advocate and discuss with Metrolinx for 
improved two-way GO Train service on the Kitchener line and extension of the 
Milton line service to Cambridge. Similarly, restoring recent VIA cuts has been 
requested of the federal government. 

12. Initiate the Environmental Assessment for improved connection to Highway 401 – 
Staff has forecasted travel demand and survey existing motorists. The need and 
justification for this project will be revisited with the RTMP update in 2015. 

13. Regular reports monitoring RTMP progress – Interim reports similar to this report 
and the 5 year RTMP update report will be submitted to Council. 

14. Financing opportunities/strategies to fund infrastructure – Council approved, 
subject to annual budget deliberations, an annual urban tax rate increase of 1.2 
% in 2011 and 1.5% for the years 2012 to 2018, to implement rapid transit and to 
fund the capital and operating costs of GRT service improvements. Staff continue 
to monitor the status of the investment strategy developed by Metrolinx which 
includes numerous new revenue tools such as a regional fuel and gas tax or 
business parking levy. 

15. Pursue modification to the provincial Development Charges Act – Staff continue 
to work with the province for the amendment of the Development Charges Act so 
that development charge funding would be available for the rapid transit project. 

16. Incorporate policies into the Regional Official Plan (ROP) – The new ROP 
contains numerous policies regarding transit-supportive development, rapid 
transit and transportation demand management. 

17. Ongoing collaboration with Province and area municipalities on transportation 
issues – There are numerous avenues through which staff collaborate with the 
province and area municipal staff including regular meetings with MTO and 
Metrolinx/GO on highway projects, transportation studies and with area municipal 
staff through project teams such as for road improvement and TDM/parking 
management coordination. 



General 
Minutes

 

 

The fol
Friday, 
 
Membe

 
Membe
 
Staff: 

 
Also Pr

 
1. C

J.
 

2. R
m

T
pr
 

3. C
 
J.
 
 

 
 

Membershi
s of Decembe

lowing are 
December 

ers Present

ers Regrets

resent: 

Call to Orde

. Mitchell, C

Roll Call an
members ap

he Secreta
resent.  A to

Chair’s Rem

. Mitchell we

On Oct
Conser
presen

Staff pr
Waterlo

 

p Meeting 
er 13, 2013 

GRAND 

GE

the minute
13, 2013 at

t: J. M
Bre
Jam
Mill
Sch

s: R. D

J. F
S. 
Wil

T. 
Ang
Bro

er 

Chair called 

d Certifica
ppointed by

ary-Treasure
otal of 23 m

marks 

elcomed me

tober 30, 20
rvation Ont

ntation on is

resented th
oo Councils

RIVER CO

NERAL M
DECE

es of the G
t the Admin

Mitchell, Ch
ennan, B. C
mieson, R. 
lar, F. Mo
hmitt, W. St

Deutschma

Farwell, K. M
Lawson, S
bur 

Jackson, P
glers and H
ock, Grand R

the meeting

ation of Qu
y participa

er called t
members att

embers, sta

013 J. Mitc
tario Coun

ssues relate

e GRCA 20
s during the

Page 1 of 11

 
 

ONSERVA

EMBERSH
EMBER 13

 
General Me
nistration Ce

hair, L. Arm
Coleman, T
Kelterborn

rison*, T. 
tauch*, G. W

nn, R. Hillie

Murch, D. B
. Radoja, D

Provincial D
Hunters; R. 
River Conse

g to order a

orum – 13
ating munic

he roll and
tended the m

aff and gues

hell, J. Farw
cil. An ins
d to climate

014 Budget 
e past month

1 

 

ATION AUT

HIP MEET
3, 2013 

embership M
entre, Camb

mstrong, B. 
T. Cowan*

n, M. Laidla
Nevills, V.

Wicke 

er, J. Ross-Z

Bennett, D. 
D. Schultz, 

Director at 
Martin, Cam
ervation Fo

at 9:35 a.m.

 members 
cipalities) 

d certified 
meeting. 

sts and mad

well K. Murc
urance ind
e change. 

to with The
h. 

THORITY

TING 

Meeting he
bridge, Onta

Banbury, B
, J. d’Ailly
aw*, B. Le
. Prenderg

Zuj 

Boyd, N. D
B. Brown, 

Large, Ont
mbridge Tim
oundation C

constitute

a quorum 

de the follow

ch and K. A
ustry repre

e City of Gu

ld at 9:30 
ario. 

B. Bell, L. B
, J. Haalb
e*, G. Lore
ast, P. Sa

Davy, K. Arm
F. Natoloc

tario Feder
mes, L. Mins
hair 

e a quorum

with 18 m

wing comm

Armstrong a
esentative 

uelph and R

a.m. on 

oyko, J. 
oom, J. 
entz, C. 
alter, S. 

mstrong, 
chny, S. 

ration of 
shall, D. 

m (1/2 of 

members 

ents: 

attended 
made a 

Region of 

dawnm
Typewritten Text
10.2



General Membership Meeting 
Minutes of December 13, 2013 

Page 2 of 11 
 

 The Chair requested that members introduce themselves to the new receptionist 
Holly so that she becomes familiar with board members and indicated that they 
must identify themselves to the receptionist in order to enter the secure area. 
She also said a tour of the head office building can be arranged if desired. 

 
 The members were reminded that a Reception will be held in the Chair’s office 

following this meeting. 
 

4. Review of the Agenda 
 
The Chair noted that a delegation, Tony Jackson has asked to speak. There was also 
a late starter confidential report  regarding a land disposition added to the agenda. 

 
 Moved by: G. Wicke 

 Seconded by: S. Schmitt (carried) 
 
THAT the agenda for the General Membership Meeting of 
December 13, 2013 be approved as amended. 
 

5. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest 
 
There were no declarations of pecuniary interest made in relation to the matters to be 
dealt with. 
 

6. Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
General Membership Meeting – November 29, 2013. 
 
There were no questions or comments with respect to the minutes of the General 
Membership Meeting of November 29, 2013. 
 
 Moved by: B. Banbury 

 Seconded by: L. Armstrong (carried) 
 

THAT the Minutes of the General Membership Meeting of 
November 29, 2013 be approved as circulated. 
 

7. Business Arising from Previous Minutes 
 
None 
 

8. Hearing of Delegations 
 

i) Tony Jackson, Provincial Director at Large, Ontario Federation of Anglers and 
Hunters (OFAH) Re:Trail Access and Restrictions to Hunters 

 
T. Jackson conducted a PowerPoint presentation indicating the following: 
 

*M. Laidlaw and B. Lee entered the meeting at 9:40am 

 Some landowners have denied access. 
 Brant County does not regulate the carrying of firearms. 
 He read an excerpt from an email indicating MNR supports his request. 
 He indicated that he previously supplied mapping of residential properties. 



General Membership Meeting 
Minutes of December 13, 2013 

Page 3 of 11 
 

 He does not believe regulation 106 intended to control this use and that 
staff could issue permits and that they are willing to work with staff to 
ensure this requirement can be met. 

 He asked why access is a GRCA concern since there are many access 
points and why meeting with Brant County is necessary. 

 He believes that signage would reduce complaints. 
 
The Chair requested that an electronic version of the delegate’s presentation 
be provided to GRCA. Staff indicated that the delegate did provide this. 

 
 

9. Presentations 
 
None 

 
10. Correspondence 

 
a) Copies for Members 

 
1) Correspondence from the Honourable David Orazietti, Minister of Natural 

Resources to Jane Mitchell, Chair, Grand River Conservation Authority dated 
November 19, 2013 re: Emerald Ash Borer 

 
2) Correspondence from the Honourable Kathleen Wynne, Minister of Agriculture 

and Food to Jane Mitchell, Chair, Grand River Conservation Authority dated 
November 22, 2013 Re: Grand River Water Management Plan 

 
3) Correspondence from Tony Jackson, Provincial Director at Large, Ontario 

Anglers and Hunters to Chair and Directors of the Grand River Conservation 
Authority dated December 2, 2013 Re: Signage and Restrictions on Hunters 
Using the Cambridge to Paris Rail Trail 

 
 

 Moved by: B. Coleman 
 Seconded by: L. Armstrong (carried) 

 
THAT correspondence from the Honourable David Orazietti, 
Minister of Natural Resources to Jane Mitchell, Chair, Grand 
River Conservation Authority dated November 19, 2013 re: 
Emerald Ash Borer, the Honourable Kathleen Wynne, Minister 
of Agriculture and Food to Jane Mitchell, Chair, Grand River 
Conservation Authority dated November 22, 2013 Re: Grand 
River Water Management Plan and Tony Jackson, Provincial 
Director at Large, Ontario Anglers and Hunters to Chair and 
Directors of the Grand River Conservation Authority dated 
December 2, 2013 Re: Signage and Restrictions on Hunters 
Using the Cambridge to Paris Rail Trail be received as 
information 
 
 

11. 1st and 2nd Reading of By-Laws 
 
None 

 



General Membership Meeting 
Minutes of December 13, 2013 

Page 4 of 11 
 

12. Presentation of Reports 
 
a) GM-12-13-140 Financial Summary for the Period Ending November 30, 2013 

 
There were no questions or comments with respect to this report. 

 
Res. No. 169-13 Moved by: J. Brennan 

 Seconded by: P. Salter (carried) 
 

THAT the Financial Summary for the Period Ending November 
30, 2013 be approved. 

 
b) GM-12-13-141 Proposed 2014 Conservation Area User Fees 

 
 J. Jamieson asked about conservation area occupancy rates. D. Bennett 

indicated that summer weekend rates are high, then summer weekdays 
next highest and shoulder season can run at 50 to 60 percent. The 
Conservation Areas do not run at 100% occupancy. 

 J. Haalboom asked how the gift cards would be advertised. D. Bennett said 
GRCA will use the website, posters at parks, mailers, and through the 
membership program. 

 P. Salter asked how the new seasonal passes will work now that the pass 
will no longer be affixed to a car windshield. D. Bennett indicated that 
patrons will have to show their card at the gate. Eventually GRCA hopes to 
have a swipe card and electronic gate system put in place. G. Wicke asked 
if card could be used by others. D. Bennett indicated that this is a 
possibility but that he is not overly concerned with misuse at this point in 
time. D. Bennett indicated that seasonal campers, board and staff will still 
be issued stickers. 

 B. Banbury asked if GRCA will be able to track when and where passes 
are being used. D. Bennett indicated that not initially, but when a swipe 
card system introduced this will be possible. 

 L. Boyko asked what the 3% seasonal camping rate increase is based on. 
D. Bennett indicated that it represents the historical annual increased and 
seasonal campers continue to get good value for this fee, which works out 
to between $9 and $12 per night. L. Boyko asked when seasonals will be 
notified of increase. D. Bennett stated that letters will be sent out in 
January. 

 J. Haalboom asked how gift cards can be used to purchase books. D. 
Bennett said that gift cards can only be used at GRCA sites that have RMS 
terminals. 

 G. Lorentz asked which parks are open in the winter. D. Bennett indicated 
that Pinehurst, Shades Mills, Laurel Creek and Belwood have winter 
programs. 

 
Res. No. 170-13 Moved by: B. Coleman 

 Seconded by: V. Prendergast (carried) 
 

THAT the proposed 2014 Conservation Areas fees be 
approved and that the new fee schedule becomes effective 
January 1, 2014. 
 
 

 



General Membership Meeting 
Minutes of December 13, 2013 

Page 5 of 11 
 

c) GM-12-13-142 Permit, Plan Review, Title Clearance and Inquiry Fee Schedule 
 

 M. Laidlaw asked if any changes to the surcharge (1.5) policy considered. 
F. Natolochny indicated that just the standard fees were considered. 

 J. Haalboom asked if board could be provided in the future with more 
information regarding how permits are being handled the work commenced 
prior to a permit being issued.  

 
Res. No. 171-13 Moved by: L. Boyko 

 Seconded by: B. Lee (carried) 
 

THAT the recommended Permit, Plan Review, Title Clearance 
and Inquiry Fee Schedule be approved, as per the fee 
schedule (Appendix I to Report GM-12-13-142) effective 
February 1, 2014. 
 

* W. Stauch joined the meeting at 9:55am and F. Morison joined the meeting at 10:00am 
 

d) GM-12-13-143 Cash and Investments Status Report 
 

There were no questions or comments with respect to this report. 
 
Res. No. 172-13 Moved by: J. Jamieson 

 Seconded by: M. Laidlaw (carried) 
 

THAT Report No. GM-12-13-143 – Cash and Investments 
Status Report as at November 30, 2013 be received as 
information. 

 
e) GM-12-13-144 Development, Interference with Wetlands and Alterations to 

Shorelines and Watercourses Regulations 
 

There were no questions or comments with respect to this report. 
 
Res. No. 173-13 Moved by: S. Schmitt 

 Seconded by: T. Nevills (carried) 
 

THAT Report No. GM-12-13-144 - Development, Interference 
with Wetlands and Alterations to Shorelines and Watercourses 
Regulation be received as information. 

 
f) GM-12-13-145 Environmental Assessments 

 
There were no questions or comments with respect to this report. 

 
Res. No. 174-13 Moved by: V. Prendergast 

 Seconded by: G. Wicke (carried) 
 

THAT Report No. GM-12-13-145 Environmental Assessments 
be received as information. 

 
g) GM-12-13-146 Water Management Plan: Communications and Engagement – 

2013-2014 
 

There were no questions or comments with respect to this report. 



General Membership Meeting 
Minutes of December 13, 2013 

Page 6 of 11 
 

 
Res. No. 175-13 Moved by: W. Stauch 

 Seconded by: J. Brennan (carried) 
 

THAT Report No. GM-12-13-146 – Water Management Plan: 
Communications and Engagement be received for information. 

 
h) GM-12-13-147 GRCA-DFO Partnership Agreement Update 

 
There were no questions or comments with respect to this report. 

 
Res. No. 176-13 Moved by: J. D’Ailly 

 Seconded by: L. Armstrong (carried) 
 

THAT Report No. GM-12-13-147 – GRCA-DFO Partnership 
Agreement be received as information. 
 

* T. Cowan joined the meeting at 10:05 am 
 

i) GM-12-13-148 Carrying of Firearms on Rail Trails 
 

 J. d’Ailly asked if any public process would take place if GRCA were to allow hunters 
to carry firearms. D. Bennett indicated that he is not aware of any public process to 
this sort of change. 

 J. Brennan asked if patrols have differing risk factors. D. Bennett said  that currently 
GRCA’s permits effectively allow hunters to carry firearms and hunt. This proposal 
would just be about carrying firearms. Patrols consist of checking accesses, looking 
for parked cars etc. Staff do not typically walk the property looking for permit holders, 
whereas in this case that sort of patrol might be considered. 

 L. Armstrong asked if this trail is in a settlement area. D. Bennett responded that he 
is not aware of such, but Brant County would know.   

 W. Stauch indicated that the houses on the East River Road have a significant 
wooded area between them and the trail. W. Stauch stated that there are in the 
range of 700 clubs, he is not aware of any negative issues, and that the clubs self-
regulate their activities.  

 W. Stauch asked if the islands are owned by GRCA. D. Bennett indicated that they 
are not. W. Stauch asked if the islands are privately owned. D. Bennett indicated that 
he does not know for certain who owns these islands, but he suspects it would be 
either Brant County or the Crown. 

 G. Wicke suggested that if GRCA carried out enforcement via complaints, that he 
could anticipate that there may in fact not be many complaints. 

 M. Laidlaw requested that staff send flyers to neighbours outlining the policy that 
GRCA is implementing to help minimize complaints. 

 B. Lee asked how the County of Brant is involved and what is their position on this 
matter. D. Bennett indicated that if permission  to carry firearms is given mid-trail then 
the public may assume that tacit permission has been given for the access to this 
area, which is owned by the County of Brant. D. Bennett is not aware of the county’s 
position on this matter. D. Bennett highlighted that MNR enforces regulations related 
to actual hunting and that GRCA can only enforce the requirement for a special 
permit for firearms on land owned by the GRCA. 



General Membership Meeting 
Minutes of December 13, 2013 

Page 7 of 11 
 

 B. Coleman stated that hunters will still need to get approval from neighbours to 
cross their property. 

 C. Millar asked about  the type of firearms being allowed. D. Bennett indicated the 
type of firearm has not been addressed. C. Millar suggested controlling the type of 
firearms to help give some comfort level to neighbours. D. Bennett suggested that 
controlling types of firearms could be a challenge since they are encased. 

 G. Lorentz suggested that GRCA just sign the trails and not be concerned about how 
the public accesses the trail. GRCA should rely on the clubs to self-enforce and 
ensure responsible use of the trail, GRCA should only address complaints, and 
should inform neighbours of our policy. He believes GRCA should allow this activity 
and does not wish to see this matter come back to the board. 

 L. Armstrong agrees that the clubs should self-enforce since they have a good record 
with managing their affairs and that GRCA should rely on the clubs to carry on 
responsibly. GRCA should just put up signage and let the clubs deal with the 
neighbours. 

 L. Boyko highlighted that GRCA has 70 KM of trails and that additional requests 
might come forward to implement similar policies elsewhere.  

 L. Boyko asked if GRCA issues a permit to the property or the hunter. D. Bennett 
said the Provincial Regulations require GRCA to issue a permit to the hunter to carry 
the firearm. 

 M. Laidlaw suggested that no permit should be required, and that signage should be 
adequate. 

 
Res. No. 177-13 Moved by: J. Brennan 

 Seconded by: J. d’Ailly (carried) 
 

THAT Report No. GM-12-13-148 – Carrying of Firearms on Rail 
Trails be received as information. 

 

The Chair reminded the Members that Motion 151-13, referred from October 25, 2013, 
was now before the Members and asked for questions or comments. 

 J. Jamieson asked for clarification regarding what the permit entails. D. Bennett 
indicated that it would be to carry a firearm on GRCA property. 

 J. Haalboom asked about the type of calls that GRCA had received. D. Bennett 
indicated that they varied and included concerns about hearing firearms, seeing  
shell casings, seeing bald eagles, seeing deer. 

 C. Millar asked if GRCA has discussed this activity with its insurers. K. Murch 
indicated that since GRCA already allows hunting on several properties, this property 
would be added to the list and it would not be a problem with respect to insurance. 

 L. Armstrong indicated that a permit  to carry a firearm in this incidence seems 
ridiculous since they already have a hunting permit. 

 M. Laidlaw agreed that a permit should not be necessary. 
 P. Salter agreed that a permit should not be necessary. 
 B. Coleman indicated that he could not support the need for a permit. 
 V. Prendergast stated that issuing a permit to the location may not be possible under 

the Provincial Regulations. 



General Membership Meeting 
Minutes of December 13, 2013 

Page 8 of 11 
 

 J. Mitchell quoted the wording of the Regulation to members where it states that the 
person must possess a permit. 

 B. Lee suggested that staff should work out the details and that if a permit is required 
under the Regulations then staff should do what is necessary. 

M. Laidlaw and Barry Lee agreed to friendly amendments to add the following to the 
original motion: 

1) and the residents of the area be informed of this decision 
2) and that staff and the Ontario Federation of Anglers and Hunters work out the 

details. 

The Chair called the question at 10:45 a.m. 

 
Res. No. 151-13 Moved by: M. Laidlaw 

 Seconded by: B. Lee (carried, 4 opposed) 
 

THAT the signs on the Cambridge to Paris Rail Trail be 
replaced with signs permitting hunters to use the trail while in 
possession of firearms provided said firearms are unloaded 
and securely encased; 
 
AND THAT the residents of the area be informed of this 
decision; 
 
AND THAT that staff and the Ontario Federation of Anglers 
work out the details. 
 
 

j) GM-12-13-149 Current Watershed Conditions as of December 10, 2013 
 

There were no questions or comments with respect to this report. 
 
Res. No. 178-13 Moved by: J. d’Ailly 

 Seconded by: J. Brennan (carried) 
 

THAT Report No. GM-13-13-149 – Current Watershed 
Conditions as of December 10, 2013 be received as 
information. 
 

k)     Report of the Audit Committee 
 

J. d’Ailly indicated that staff presented a very positive report on the use of the new 
accounting software, Dynamics GP and that he was pleased with the 
improvements outlined. J. Mitchell indicated that she is also pleased with new 
accounting system. 

 
Res. No. 179-13 Moved by: J. Jamieson 

 Seconded by: L. Boyko (carried) 
 

THAT the Report of the Audit Committee be received as 
information. 

 



General Membership Meeting 
Minutes of December 13, 2013 

Page 9 of 11 
 

13. Committee of the Whole 
 
None 

 
14. General Business 

 
None 

 
15. 3rd Reading of By-Laws 

 
None 

 
16. Other Business 

 
i) W. Stauch highlighted that the recent presentation GRCA staff made to Region of 

Waterloo regarding the 2014 Budget was customized to highlight GRCA activities 
over the past year that occurred in the region. 

 
ii) W. Stauch reminded members that the 2014 is the 20th Anniversary of the Heritage 

River designation and that if members are going to be involved in any activities or 
would like to suggest any activities related to this anniversary they should advise J. 
Farwell or W. Stauch.  

 
iii) G. Lorentz commented that the GRCA staff presentation to Region of Waterloo 

council went well.  He indicated that one should not take this outcome for granted 
and that it may be due to the fact that over time councillors have come to have a 
good understanding of the activities undertaken by GRCA. 

 
17. Closed Meeting:  (motion required – pursuant to Section 36 of By-law No. 1-2013) 

 
Res. No. 180-13 Moved by: J. Brennan 

 Seconded by: L. Armstrong (carried) 
 

THAT the General Membership Meeting of December 13, 2013 
adjourn into closed session to discuss staff compensation and 
two proposed property dispositions. 
 

The meeting adjourned at 10:50 a.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 11:35 a.m. 
 
             a)  GM-12-13-150 Salary Adjustments – January 1, 2014 
 
Res. No. 181-13 Moved by: V. Prendergast 

 Seconded by: M. Laidlaw (carried) 
 

THAT the salary ranges for non-union positions be increased 
by1.5% effective January 1, 2014. 

 
b)  GM-12-13-151 Request for Proposals – Victoria Road, North, City of Guelph –  

    Land Sale 
 

The Board received an update from staff during the closed meeting, regarding the 
outcome of the Request for Proposal process. 



General Membership Meeting 
Minutes of December 13, 2013 

Page 10 of 11 
 

 

  
c) GM-12-13-152 Land Disposition – Former Gyurtis Property, 360 Clyde  

    Road, City of Cambridge 
 

 J. Mitchell read the report summary. Residences were often acquired when 
the Grand River Conservation Authority (GRCA) purchased lands for its 
various projects.  The former Gyurtis Residence, purchased in 1970, was 
initially used for staff lodging and following that, the house was rented out to 
residential tenants.  Rental of the house was stopped in 2010 due to the high 
cost of internal renovations required to continue its use as a rental unit.  The 
property was declared surplus by the Board in 2011, and staff commenced 
with various planning approvals, an appraisal, survey, public notification and 
listing of the property.  An offer to purchase has been received and is 
recommended for approval.  Proceeds received from the sale will be held in a 
reserve and can be used for specific projects approved by the Ministry of 
Natural Resources. 

 
Res. No. 182-13 Moved by: J. d’Ailly 

 Seconded by: J. Haalboom (carried) 
 

IN ORDER TO FURTHER THE OBJECTS OF the Grand River 
Conservation Authority by raising funds through the disposition 
of surplus lands, 

THEREFORE IT BE RESOLVED THAT the Grand River 
Conservation Authority sell the lands described as Part of Lot 
5, Concession 12 and Part of the unopened road allowance 

between Concession 11 and Concession 12, in the Geographic 
Township of North Dumfries, City of Cambridge, Regional 
Municipality of Waterloo, and more particularly described as 
Part 4 on Reference Plan 58R-17392, comprised of 0.21 
hectares (0.53 acres), to Troy Ursula Stewart and Lori A. 
Moreau, at the offered price of $299,000.  

18. Next Meetings 
 

i) General Membership Meeting and Election of Officers 
Friday, January 24, 2014 
Auditorium/Boardroom, Administration Centre, Cambridge 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



General Membership Meeting 
Minutes of December 13, 2013 

Page 11 of 11 
 

19. Adjourn 
 

The meeting adjourned at 11:40 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
    
Chair Secretary-Treasurer 



dawnm
Typewritten Text
10.3





TO THE IMMEDIATE ATTENTION OF THE CLERK AND COUNCIL  
 
January 17, 2014 
 

The Fork in the Road – Highlights of AMO’s 2014 Pre-Budget Submission 
 
Today the Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) provided its 2014 Pre-Budget 
Submission to the Standing Committee on Finance and Economic Affairs and the Minister of 
Finance.   
 
Quick highlights: 

 It calls on the legislature to call the question on key Bills that are beneficial to 
municipalities but which have languished far too long.  

 It sets out a nine point action plan for the coming year’s provincial budget which includes 
the following:  

 
1. Infrastructure - Small, rural and northern municipalities need a permanent, predictable 

infrastructure fund in the next provincial budget. We also need to discuss how 
sustainable support for transit and large infrastructure investments can become a reality 
that works in all parts of Ontario.  
 

2. Emergency Service Costs – Rate of growth of these services is not sustainable and 
AMO is looking for action on drivers that contribute to this. It continues to advocate for 
an improved, accountable and transparent arbitration system that gives meaning to 
capacity to pay.  

 
In addition, the Province must have a more vigorous pursuit of system-wide efficiencies 
in policing and proceed in earnest in order to deal with the cost drivers for all police 
forces.   
 
Three-quarters of all Ontario municipalities pay and use the services of the Ontario 
Provincial Police (OPP).  Ontario Municipal Partnership Fund (OMPF) reductions and 
OPP wage increases in 2014 have caused a $50 million hit for property taxpayers in 
rural, small urban and northern communities.  These same municipalities are facing a 
proposed new model for OPP billing that helps some and for others the impact is not 
feasible. Any OPP billing change must involve municipal finance expertise, consider the 
differing fiscal health of municipalities, involve various Ministries and a way to validate 
the OPP costs for its activity centres and examine mitigation techniques.  
 

3. Municipal Liability – the Attorney General’s willingness to explore some version of 
proportionate liability in road cases where a plaintiff has some negligence needs to move 
into a government and Legislature priority.  
  

4. Waste Management - Pass Bill 91, the Waste Reduction Act.  It reflects municipal 
perspectives on producers’ responsibility – let’s take action now so that we can cut the 
waste, reduce the pressure on landfills and eliminate wrap rage.  
 

5. Improve the rule of law - Pass Bill 34, the Highway Traffic Statute Law Amendment 
Act, to help municipalities collect unpaid fines.  Provincial Offences Act reform has 
been stalled in the legislature since last April.   

dawnm
Typewritten Text
10.4



6. Housing - Total housing and homelessness prevention funding must be enhanced and 
further program consolidation is needed to produce more cost-effective and efficient. 
Despite the social services upload, property taxpayers in Ontario shoulder the burden of 
social housing and asked to take a role in providing affordable housing, on top of child 
care and long term care and public health.  
 

7. Energy - A renewed look at energy planning and energy costs so that Ontario can be as 
competitive as possible.  

 
8. Growth must pay for growth - On Development Charges, artificial discounts for transit, 

etc. and exclusions (e.g. hospitals) need to end.  
 

9. Loss and Destruction – Municipalities call on the provincial and federal government to 
collectively review the recovery programs for natural or man-made disasters to public 
property.   

 
Municipalities are encouraged to reflect these themes in their discussions with MPPs and their 
own submissions.   
  
Contact: Matthew Wilson, Senior Advisor, 416-971-9856 ext. 323 or mwilson@amo.on.ca 
  
PLEASE NOTE AMO Breaking News will be broadcast to the member municipality's council, 
administrator and clerk.  Recipients of the AMO broadcasts are free to redistribute the AMO 
broadcasts to other municipal staff as required.  We have decided to not add other staff to these 
broadcast lists in order to ensure accuracy and efficiency in the management of our various 
broadcast lists.     
 
DISCLAIMER These are final versions of AMO documents.  AMO assumes no responsibility for 
any discrepancies that may have been transmitted with the electronic version. The printed 
versions of the documents stand as the official record.  
 



 
 

Township of Wilmot 
Heritage Wilmot Advisory Committee 

 
Minutes of January 14th, 2014 

 
Present: Nick Bogaert (Chair), Elisia Scagnetti, Marg Rowell, Rene Eby, Lindsay 
Joseph, Tracy Loch (Curator), Peter Roe (Councillor), Grant Whittington (CAO). 
 
Regrets: Chris Ehrat, Gary Beach, Al Junker (Councillor) 
 
Meeting was held at Swartzentruber Room, Township of Wilmot.  Meeting started 
at 7:15 p.m. 
 
Welcome 
Nick Bogaert welcomed the committee members to the Heritage Wilmot Advisory 
Committee meeting.  
 
Review of the Minutes from December 3rd, 2013 
MOVED by Rene 
SECONDED by Peter 
ALL in favour 
 
New Business 
2014 Heritage Wilmot Meeting Schedule 
The committee will continue to have meetings generally on the first Tuesday of 
every month.  The committee reviewed the calendar, and a few adjustments 
were made to schedule around some holidays.  The committee also agreed not 
to meet in the month of July.  Tracy mentioned that Heritage Wilmot has been 
invited to attend 2 of 3 televised council meetings in 2014 if they would like, as 
it’s a wonderful opportunity to share information.  The committee agreed that the 
April council meeting would be attended in order to discuss the new walking 
tours, and update on other activities.  The committee also agreed that the 
September meeting would be attended to discuss the updates to the non-
designated register.  
 
ACTION:  Tracy will revise the 2014 schedule and distribute to the committee. 
 
 
 
 

dawnm
Typewritten Text
10.5



Non-Designated Register – Future focus areas 
Nick circulated a map of the Township that he created to mark the areas of focus 
for the non-designated register.  He shaded in areas of the township according to 
the proposed year that the committee plans to work on that area.  It was agreed 
that the rural area below Huron Road would be the focus for 2014.  The 
committee would that focus on other rural areas further north in the following 
years and eventually work towards the more urban areas of Baden and New 
Hamburg in 2019 and 2020.  This map will help the committee to better focus 
their work in regards to the non-designated register. 
 
ACTION:  Nick will send a copy of the map file to Tracy for her records and so 
that it can be used in a televised council meeting. 
 
Rene mentioned that the committee should try and use the resources of the 
heritage summer student more in doing some of the research for the non-
designated properties.  Marg also mentioned that she has access to research 
that has been done on properties that are located on concessions north of 
Snyder’s Road.  This research was done using the Tremaine map and land 
registry documents.  These will be helpful in the future when the committee 
focuses on these areas. 
 
Business 
Walking Tours 
The enhanced walking tours for Baden, New Hamburg and New Dundee have all 
been completed and printed. Tracy also has a PDF version of the tours that she 
plans to include on the Heritage Wilmot website.  It was suggested that a black 
and white PDF should be made available on the website for people wishing to 
print it for themselves at home.  There has been a lot of interest in these tours 
from groups and tourists. 
 
Heritage Day 2014 
The committee discussed in detail whether or not the planned Heritage Day in 
February would go ahead. The committee discussed how they are more focused 
on other aspects of heritage (such as potential designations and the non-
designated register) that it might becoming too difficult to also be involved in the 
extensive Heritage Day.  The committee discussed other ways of being involved 
in the community and having a more significant presence.  The committee would 
like to look at other ways to have outreach, such as interactive displays at events 
like the Fall Fair or toys/dress-up costumes/tool demonstrations at events like 
Doors Open.  In this way, the committee could be a noticeable part of the events 
without the added time and energy being devoted into the organization and set 
up of the event itself. 
 
After discussion, the committee decided to postpone the event until 2015 so that 
they can concentrate on the current endeavours.  



ACTION: There was a general consensus of members of the committee to 
postpone Heritage Day. 
 
Correspondence 
Waterlot 
Leslie at the Waterlot Restaurant contacted Tracy and Nick.  She is interested in 
applying for a grant from the Regional Heritage Foundation to assist with 
renovations of the property.  She would like the committee’s assistance with the 
application and support from the committee for her application. 
 
 
Adjournment at 9:13 p.m. 
MOVED by Peter 
SECONDED by Rene 
 
 
Next meeting – February 4th, 2014 



dawnm
Typewritten Text
10.6









THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT 
 

BY-LAW NO. 2014-05 TO AMEND 1980-06 
 

TO CHANGE THE NAME OF A PORTION OF HIGHWAY 
WITHIN THE TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT 

 
 
 

WHEREAS the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, C. 25  Section 11(3)  provides  that municipalities 
may pass by-laws respecting highways; 
 
 
AND WHEREAS Township of Wilmot Council deems it desirable to change the name of a portion 
of a certain highway within the Township of Wilmot; 
 
 
AND WHEREAS  public notice of the proposed change of name has been published in a 
newspaper having general circulation on January 29th and a Hearing  was held by Council on 
February 10, 2014; 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP 
OF WILMOT ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 
 
 

1. THAT Deerfield Avenue be renamed “Deerfield Extension”  for that portion of the 
highway east of Alice Crescent, Petersburg. 
 
 

2. THAT this by-law shall take effect from and after the registration thereof in the Land 
Registry Office Waterloo (No 58).   

 
 
 
 
 
READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME AND FINALLY PASSED  
 
 
THIS 10TH DAY OF  FEBRUARY,  2014. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

__________________ 
MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________ 
CLERK 
 
 



 

 THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT 

 BY-LAW NO. 2014-06 

 

 

 BY-LAW TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTION OF AN 

 AGREEMENT AS MORE PARTICULARLY SET FORTH 

 IN SCHEDULE "A" ATTACHED 

 

 

WHEREAS the Municipal Council of the Corporation of the Township of 

Wilmot is desirous of entering into an Agreement, a copy of which is attached as Schedule 

"A" to this By-law. 

 

THEREFORE THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF 

THE TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 

1. That the Agreement attached as Schedule "A" to this By-law be and the same is 

hereby accepted as approved. 

 

 

2. That the Mayor and The Clerk are hereby authorized to execute under seal the said 

Agreement and all other documents and papers relating to this transaction. 

 

 

READ a first and second time this 10th day of February, 2014. 
 
READ a third time and finally passed in Open Council this 10th day of February, 2014. 
 

 

 

 

 

__________________________                                                        

                     Mayor 

 

 

__________________________                                                        

        Clerk   

 

 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT 
 

BY-LAW NO. 2014-07 
 

BEING A BY-LAW TO ESTABLISH WATER AND WASTEWATER 
FEES AND CHARGES TO USERS OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 

WILMOT’S WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEMS AND 
WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM 

    

 
WHEREAS Section 11(3) and (4) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001 c. 25, as amended (the 
“Act”), allows municipalities to pass by-laws respecting public utilities; 
 
AND WHEREAS the term “public utility” includes systems that are used to provide water and 
sewage services for the public; 
 
AND WHEREAS section 391(1)(b) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as amended, 
authorizes a municipality to impose fees or charges on persons for services or activities 
provided or done by or on behalf of it; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the Township of Wilmot enacts as 
follows: 
 
Definitions 
 
1. In this by-law: 
 

(a) “Appurtenance" includes a valve, valve chamber, hydrant, hydrant lead, flow 
meter, curb stop, maintenance access point, maintenance hole, manhole, grate, 
catch basin, catch basin lead, ditch inlet chamber or other minor accessory part 
of the Water Distribution System; 

 
(b) "AWWA" means American Water Works Association; 

 
(c) “Consumer” means an Owner, occupant, lessee or tenant of a property or any 

other person purchasing Services from the Township; 
 

(d) “Control valve" means a valve for controlling the flow of water within the 
distribution system; 

 
(e) “Council” means the municipal council of The Corporation of the Township of 

Wilmot; 
 

(f) “Curb stop" means an apparatus installed by the Township outside of a building, 
normally on the Property Line, used for controlling the flow of water supplied to a 
property; 

 
(g) “Highway” means a common and public highway and includes any bridge, trestle, 

viaduct or other structure forming part of the highway and, except as otherwise 
provided, includes a portion of a highway; 

 
(h) “Meter” means an apparatus for measuring the quantity of water used; 
 
(i) “Owner” means the registered owner of a property, or their agent/designate; 

 
(j) “Person” means an individual, sole proprietorship, partnership or corporation; 
 
(k) “Property Line” means the line or demarcation between properties; 

 
(l) “Region” means The Regional Municipality of Waterloo; 
 
(m) “Reservoir” means a place where water is stored or accumulated; 

 
(n) “Service Pipe” means the conduit for transporting water from the Watermain to a 

property; 
 



 2 

(o) “Services” means all water services supplied by the Township via the Water 
Distribution System and all wastewater services provided by the Wastewater 
Collection System; 

 
(p) “Sewage” means wastewater. 

 
(q) “Township” means The Corporation of the Township of Wilmot; 

 
(r) “Wastewater Collection System” includes all collection mains, lift/pump stations, 

and all appurtenances thereto; 
 

(s) “Water Distribution System” includes all Reservoirs, Service Pipes, Watermains 
and all appurtenances thereto; and, 

 
(t) "Watermain" means any system of pipes and appurtenances used for the 

transmission or distribution of potable water, but does not include plumbing to 
which the Building Code Act, 1992 applies or a pumping facility. 

 
Township Property 
 
2. All appurtenances and other equipment between the Watermain and the Property Line, 

and all Meters, are, and shall remain, the property of the Township. 
 
3. Township property that is used for, or in connection with, the supply of the Services is 

exempt from seizure: 
 

(a) against the Owner or occupant of the property under the Execution Act, R.S.O. 
1990, c. E.24; and, 

 
(b) against a person with a leasehold interest in property for overdue rent. 

 
Meters 
 
4. All Meters shall be located in a safe and convenient place, so as to facilitate access by 

the Township. 
 
5. All Meters shall be located as close as possible to the entrance of the Service Pipe into a 

building. 
 
6. No Meter shall be enclosed or sufficiently inaccessible so as to prohibit it from being 

read, examined or removed by the Township. 
 
7. The Township may, at reasonable times, enter on land to which it supplies Services in 

order to: 
 

(a) inspect, repair, alter or disconnect the Services, machinery, equipment and other 
works used to supply the Services; or, 

 
(b) inspect, install, repair, replace or alter a Meter. 

 
8. The Township may charge a fee to the Owner, pursuant to the attached Schedule “A”, 

for denying or otherwise prohibiting access to a Meter, which would represent the 
reasonable costs incurred by the Township.  The Township may add this fee to the tax 
roll for the relevant property and collect the fee in the same manner as municipal taxes. 

 
9. An Owner shall be liable for any damage to a Meter, other than normal wear and tear, as 

determined by the Township, and should a Meter be damaged, the Township may 
charge the Owner the cost of repairing or replacing the Meter pursuant to the attached 
Schedule “A”. 

 
10. No person, other than an employee or agent of the Township, shall be permitted to 

remove, inspect or tamper with a Meter or other equipment of the Township. 
 
11. No person shall alter any Meter, either inside or outside of any building or other place, so 

as to lessen or alter the amount of water registered on the Meter. 
 



 3 

12. Any Consumer having doubt as to the accuracy of a Meter may request that the Meter 
be removed and tested by notifying the Township and submitting a deposit to the 
Township in accordance with the attached Schedule “A”.  If the Meter is found to meet 
the applicable AWWA standards for accuracy, the deposit shall be forfeited to the 
Township.  However, if the Meter is found to not conform to the applicable AWWA 
standards, the deposit shall be returned to the Consumer and appropriate adjustments 
shall be made to the subject account. 

 
Water Supply 
 
13. As the Region is the sole supplier of water to the Township, the Township cannot 

guarantee the supply, quality or pressure of water to Consumers and failure to supply 
water shall not be construed as negligence on the part of the Township. 

 
Fees and Charges 
 
14. Fees or charges imposed upon Consumers for their use of the Services, including the 

consumption of water, as measured by the Meters, and any wastewater fees or charges, 
are all outlined in the attached Schedules “A”, “B” and “C”. 

 
15. Payments for all fees or charges imposed by the Township on a Consumer are due and 

payable by a Consumer on the date noted on the bill and there shall be a one-time ten 
percent (10%) charge for late payment. 

 
Non-Payment of Fees and Charges 
 
16. If, after fourteen (14) days past the due date, fees or charges are still not paid, the 

Township may advise the Consumer that unless the fees or charges are paid within 
seven (7) days, the Township may discontinue the Services to the property upon which 
the fees or charges are due, and in the event the Services are turned off, they shall not 
be turned on again until such time as all arrears are paid together with the fees/charges 
and costs incurred on behalf of the Township for turning any of the Services off and on.  
The aforesaid fees/charges and costs for turning any of the Services off and on shall be 
at the rates outlined in the attached Schedule “A”. 

 
17. If fees or charges are not paid to the Township by the Consumer in accordance with the 

provisions of this by-law, the Township may add the outstanding fees or charges to the 
tax roll for the relevant property and collect the fees or charges in the same manner as 
municipal taxes. 

 
Billing Errors 
 
18. Where billing errors have resulted in over-billing, the Consumer shall be credited with the 

amount erroneously billed for the relevant period, but not exceeding six (6) years. 
 

19. Where billing errors have resulted in under-billing, the consumer shall be charged the 
amount erroneously not billed for a period not exceeding: 

 
(a) two (2) years, in the case of a residential Consumer who was not responsible for 

the error; and, 
 
(b) six (6) years in all other cases. 

 
Exemption 
 
20. Consumers residing in the settlement areas of Mannheim and Shingletown in the 

Township shall be exempt from this by-law as their Services are provided by The 
Corporation of the City of Kitchener. 

 
Severability 
 
21. If a Court of competent jurisdiction should declare any section or part of a section of this 

by-law to be invalid, such section or part of a section shall not be construed as having 
persuaded or influenced Council to pass the remainder of this by-law and it is hereby 
declared that the remainder of this by-law shall be valid and shall remain in full force and 
effect. 



 4 

Repeal 
 
22. By-law 2013-07 is hereby repealed. 

 
Coming Into Force 
 
23. This by-law shall come into force and effect on March 1, 2014. 
 
 
READ a first and second time in Open Council this 10th day of February, 2014. 
 
 
READ a third time and finally passed in Open Council this 10th day of February, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Mayor 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 



 5 

Schedule “A” 
Utility Service Fees 

 
Water Meters Cost Criteria 
 ½” & ¾” Meters (Standard Residential) – plus HST $145.00 per Meter 
 Other Size Meters – plus HST Actual Cost  
 MXU Device (includes installation) – plus HST $140.00 per MXU 
 Security Tag Replacement (Meter Sealing) – plus HST $50.00 per Meter 
 Tail Pieces – plus HST $15.00 per Meter 
 Remote/Mounting Bracket Assembly – plus HST $30.00 per Meter 
 Meter Accuracy Deposit $200.00  
 Meter Installation Fee Actual Cost  
 Water Meter Repairs Actual Cost  
 Remote Re-Wiring Actual Cost  
    

Water/Wastewater Services Cost Criteria 
 Service Inspections Actual Cost  
 Water Service Line Repairs Actual Cost  
 Wastewater Service Line Repairs Actual Cost  
 Water Main Line Repairs Actual Cost  
 Wastewater Main Line Repairs Actual Cost  
 Water Sampling/Testing Actual Cost  
 Water/Wastewater Services Administration – plus HST 10%  
    

Materials – plus HST Actual Cost 
    

Labour Charges Cost Criteria 
 Regular Working Hours – plus HST $35.00 per Hour 
 After Working Hours (Monday – Saturday) – plus HST $52.50 per Hour 
 After Working Hours (Sunday & Holidays) – plus HST $70.00 per Hour 
    

Vehicle Rates Cost Criteria 
 Flusher/Vacuum Truck – plus HST $120.00 per Hour 
 Stake Truck – plus HST $30.00 per Hour 
 Service Truck – plus HST $30.00 per Hour 
 Pickup Truck – plus HST $25.00 per Hour 
    

Miscellaneous Services Cost Criteria 
 Water Disconnect/Reconnect $65.00 Each 
 Camera Inspection – plus HST $155.00 per Hour 
 Hydrant Use Permit $75.00 per Day 
 Tapping Machine (minimum $100) – plus HST $35.00 per Hour 
 Sidewalk Clearing $120.00 per Hour 



 6 

Schedule “B” 
Water Rates and Charges 

 

Consumption Rates Cost per m3 
(1,000 L) 

 Water Rate $1.6464 
 Water Rate – Foxboro Green $0.9319 
   

Service Charges Annual Charge 

 ½” & ¾” Meters (Standard Residential) $84.00 
 1” Meter $90.35 
 1½” Meter $142.23 
 2” Meter $182.00 
 3” Meter $327.00 
 4” Meter $483.75 
 6” Meter $794.33 
   

Other Annual Charges (if applicable) Annual Charge 

 Flat Rate Water Charge (non-metered properties) $940.50 
 Foxboro Green Administration Charge $715.80 
 Additional Meter Fee – ½” & ¾” Meters $11.00 
 Additional Meter Fee – 1” Meter $18.00 
 Additional Meter Fee – 1½” Meter $35.00 
 Additional Meter Fee – 2” Meter $43.00 
 Additional Meter Fee – 3” Meter $122.00 
 Additional Meter Fee – 4” Meter $208.00 
 Additional Meter Fee – 6” Meter $725.00 
  

Other One-Time Fees (if applicable) Fee 

 Account Setup Fee $30.00 
 Additional Water Meter Reading $25.00 

 
Water Rates and Charges Descriptions: 
 
Water Rates and Charges are only applicable if a property is connected to one of the Township’s 
Waste Distribution Systems. 
 Consumption Rates are applied based on a consumer’s consumption of water as measured by 

the installed meter. 
 Service Charges are applied based on the size of the meter measuring the water service at each 

property. 
 Other Charges and Fees are applied to a consumer only as necessary.  Annual Fees are 

prorated based on the number of days within a billing period. 
o The Flat Rate Water Charge is applied to any consumer whose property is connected to a 

Township Water Distribution Systems and whose consumption is not measured by a meter.  
o An Additional Meter Fee is applied only if there is an additional Township owned meter 

located at a property. 
o The Account Setup Fee is applied to the first bill of all “newly created” Wilmot Water 

Accounts. 
o An Additional Water Meter Reading Fee is applied to an account for all readings not 

associated with the regularly scheduled bi-monthly reading. 



 7 

Schedule “C” 
Wastewater Rates and Charges 

 

Discharge Rates Cost per m3 
(1,000 L) 

 Wastewater Rate $1.7458 
 Wastewater Rate – Morningside $1.3104 
 Wastewater Rate – Foxboro Green $0.8750 
   

Service Charges Annual Charge 

 ½” & ¾” Meters (Standard Residential) $84.00 
 1” Meter $90.35 
 1½” Meter $142.23 
 2” Meter $182.00 
 3” Meter $327.00 
 4” Meter $483.75 
 6” Meter $794.33 
   

Other Charges (if applicable) Annual Charge 

 Foxboro Green Administration Charge $715.80 
 
Wastewater Rates and Charges Descriptions: 
 
Wastewater Rates and Charges are only applicable if a property is connected to the Township’s 
Wastewater Collection System. 
 Discharge Rates are applied based on a consumer’s consumption of water as measured by the 

installed meter. 
 Service Charges are applied based on the size of the meter measuring the water service at each 

property. 
 Other Charges are applied to a consumer only as necessary and are prorated based on the 

number of days within a billing period. 
 


	Memo
	Agenda
	Minutes
	7.1
	9.1.1
	9.2.1
	WILMOT HERITAGE FIRE BRIGADES AGREEMENT 2014 (2)
	9.2.2
	9.2.3
	9.2.4
	9.3.1
	9.3.1 Budget Package
	FIN 2014-09 Budget Package.pdf
	FIN 2014-09 Budget Package.pdf
	Opening.pdf


	page 1 & 2.pdf
	new package to publish p 1&2


	9.3.1 Presentation
	9.4.1
	9.5.1
	9.6.1
	9.6.2
	9.8.1
	10.1
	10.2
	10.3
	10.4
	10.5
	10.6
	11.1
	11.2
	11.3
	Agenda Planner



